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The Chair’s Fo r’evvord

As I reflect on the last year, it is clear that 2 significant changes have driven the way we have operated
during 2020/21; the national Coronavirus pandemic and the announcement of the recommmendations of
the Tailored Review which were accepted and ultimately determined the closure of BPDTS. Despite the -
magnitude of these, the dedication of BPDTS to continue to deliver the service commissioned by DWP
and improve the experience of those that usé these key public services has remained undimmed. BPDTS
has played a significant part in many of the changes delivered to the public, including; improving the User
Support Services which ensured that the service to the public at local hubs was maintained, the upgrading
of the Central Payments System which was critical in. making sure that payments continued to be made
to applicants during the unprecedented demands that were experienced during the pondemlc and the
introduction of ‘Get your State Pensuon online; which recelved over 500k applications in the first month

[ am immensely proud how pos|t|vely the BPDTS team has approached the stroteglc and the dorly
challenges such significarit chonges bring, ranging from the adjustment to daily working from: office
environments to adapting homes to ensure that a seamless service continued to be provided while coping
. with the closure of the company and the transfer of its staff to DWP. I, and the other Directors of BPDTS,
worked closely with BPDTS Senior Managers to ensure that our employees were central to any decisions
that the Board has taken dnd ensured that our people have been informed of developments throughout
_ the year. At each Board meeting we have received presentations which have showcased projects that have
- been delivered or work that is in progress, and each time the presenters have shown their enthusiasm and
pride in what they have achieved. I am sure that this passion to improve the technology services prowded to
. the public will continue to the new dlgItOl function. - _ o L.

: The Unity Programme, was established to lead the transition of BPDTS into the DWP Single Digital Function.
I was appointed as Chair, so providing a conduit to the BPDTS Board. This worked well, giving confidence .

_to the Board that the processes and procedures for the transfer of employees were robust and that the
BPDTS Executive Team were fully engaged. I was clear in my ambition as we embarked upon a period on
transition, that the people who'had worked so tirelessly to continue to deliver services would be engaged -
where possible, in shopmg their future. A significant number ofJornt working groups (DWP and BPDTS) were
established so that the views of BPDTS were taken into dccount in the proposed TUPE measures for transfer,
this coltaboration was supported by both teams. :

‘Whilst this is not the.final onnuol report for BPDTS, [ can announce that the non-executive team members
will be leaving the Board to co-incide with the staff TUPE transfer to the DWP on 1 July 2021. I would like to
take this opportunity to thank them for the part they have played in ensuring that BPDTS was successful,
their expertise and dedication played a significant part. I would also like to express my gratitude to Loveday
Ryder - Chief Executive-and-Mal Singh - Chief Finance Ofﬁcer for their leodershrp and support and wish
them every success in their future roles ‘ ,

: Jeremy Moore CB
BPDTS Chair

13 October 2021




Chief _Exetutive’s Fore\’/‘vord

[ am pleased as Chief Executive of BPDTS to present to you the Annuol Report and Accounts for 2020/21 and
to outline what will happenin 2021/22.1 hope you find it rnterestlng

BPDTS Ltd isa prrvote limited company and'we predomrnontly provrde digital and technology servicés to’
the Department for Work and Pensiohs (DWP). As part of the DWP family, we have been transforming digital
experiences of millions of peoplée as they look for work deal with illness or disability, support children after
separation, or plan for retrrement .

In portrculor this year, we hove been proud to support DWP in its continued response to the COVID-19
_ pandemic, and we have continued to work with DWP in maintaining and adapting digital services, delivering: -
critical changes and supporting the infrastructure that enables operational staff to work productively from -
homé. The vast majority of our people have worked from home throughout the entire year. In supporting
people through these unsettling times we were able to maintain morole and continued to provide the
excellent services that we are known for.

As mentioned in last year’s Annual Report, the announcement that the DWP hod occepted
recommendations of the Tailored Review was made at the end of September, which included the
recommendation to close BPDTS Limited and create a singte digital function in DWP. This announcement
enhanced the levels of anxiety and uncertainty amongst BPDTS colleagues, but I'm glad we were able

to reassure people that we would be working hard with DWP to ensure everyone had a home in the new
digital function being created. A huge amount of work has gone into ensuring the creation of this single
digital function within DWP on 1st July 2021 goes smoothly and everyone in BPDTS lands safely..I'm proud
of the way in which, as an organisation, we have worked with DWP to make this hoppen regardless of our
- disappointment that BPDTS will cease to exist as a company.

Throughout the second half of 2020/21, leadership focus has been split between enoblrng the successful

~ integration of the two organisations and contrnurng to deliverfantastic digital services with top talent.
Throughout the past year, demand for our services has, understandably, remained high as we support DWP
in their efforts to support the country through difficult times and we have.contributed to many of DWP’s

" critical delivery efforts, flexing ond pivoting to ever- chongrng needs.

As we move into 2021/22, we will complete the transfer of everyone from BPDTS into DWP and formally
close the company. I look forward to the new challenges and opportunities that lie ahead for all colleagues
“within DWP. The considerable efforts we've put into building an inclusive and supportive culture within

BPDTS has given us the platform to tackle this year as a united orgonrsotron that, regardless of what lies
ahead, can be rightly-proud of what we have achieved together since we were created in 2016. I would like
to thank the Board, Executive Team and all my colleagues for their support in making this year one that we
will be able to look back on with pride at what we have occomplrshed and welcome Andrew Garton-as the
Chief Finance Officer from Aprrl 2021.

Richard McHugh ‘
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer

13 October 2021
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Background

BPDTS Ltd is a private limited company, whose sole member is the  Secretary of State for Work and Pensions.
We were set up in 2016 to provide digital technology services to the DWP. 2020/21 is the final full year of -
provrdlng services to DWP on 1st July 2021 all employees will TUPE into DWP and form part of a new srngle
digital function. .

Our mission is that as part of DWP’s famrly, we creote and run secure and rnturtlve drgltol services thot meet
the needs of millions of people

We work with DWP to design and delrver these services to moke d drfference to citizens at crltlcol times in
their lives as they:

« look for work and do all they canto reollse their full potentrol
- deal with |llness or disability
» support children after separation

» plan for and enjoy a secure retrrement

The Company’s employees are public servants who provide a full range: of drgrtol technology services to
DWP. We've been set up to provide services, where our people are remuneroted more flexibly to attract and

’ retcrn high quality digital, data and technology specrclrsts

Our vision is to take a truly people-centric approach to delrvering outstanding digital solutions with DWP.

We believe our people are at the heart of the organisation and ottroctin'g and retaining higkr-colibre digital
professionals is key to delivering outstanding services to our customer. All BPDTS employees will TUPE to

DWP on 1st July 2021 and continue to provide outstanding servrces to key customers of DWP.

BPDTS is formally clossified as ‘a non-departmental public body. A Master Services Agreement (MSA) sets out

the basis on which BPDTS provides services to DWP and a Framework Agreement sets out how BPDTS should

operate as an arm’s length body in the public sector. Under these agreements, BPDTS is required to recover -

its costs in full through charges to DWP. DWP has made working capital available to BPDTS, in the form of -

“repayable cash funding, under a Funding Facility Agreement. Under a Support Services Agreement (SSA),

DWP provides some services to BPDTS such as accommodation, for which-it charges. An exit plan has been
put into place so that the MSA and SSA will cease on 30th June 2021 S :
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Strategic Report

During this period the COVID 19 pandemic impacted the way that-we work, which like other organisations,
.required BPDTS to respond to the need for people to work from home where possible with over 98% of '
employees working from home at any one time and also, as an.arm length body to DWP, an increase in .
the demand for rapid technical development to meet the increased demand in public services because of
- the pandemic. We are especially proud-of how we supported DWP to meet the increased and changing
demands within tight timelines, ensuring that the expertise of our employees in the professional disciplines
of Architectuire, Engineering, Data and Analytics, Delivery Management, Product DeS|gn ond Serwce
Monogement prowded a significant contrlbutlon

BPDTS services work with DWP teams to build, run and morntorn many of the digital systems that support

DWP’s core functions. The demands that were placed on DWP to develop many of these- systems required -

close collaboration with BPDTS colleagues, both in the development of systems and also ensuring the

* availability of these to the public. BPDTS was pivotal in supporting DWP to'make multiple system changes to
ensure that public demand was met e.g. emergency poyments pension credit and upgrading of the Central

Payments System. . :

However, in addition to the business priorities the pondemic required BPDTS to'react quickly to the demands _

that were being placed on DWP, as the government and the public responded to'the pandemic. Internal
systems were upgraded to enable teams to continue to meet and resolve.issues virtually and networks
developed to cope with the additional requrrements as more people accessed the network as home
workers. A ,

. The demand for change as a result of the pandemic and the impending merger is supported by our ongoing
© commitment to ensure that we collaborate and operate in the most seamless and effective manner to

get the most out of the service offer. We have focused on moving from the relationship being that'of a -

customer/supplier towards being part of the family. Our Practice Leads have worked with their communities

in BPDTS and DWP to increase and promote a range of regular knowledge sharing events within and across

practices for colleagues, to'combine efforts and share learning.

With this backdrop, we agreed the 2020/21 'busingess priorities:

" Strengthening our relationship with DWP: Strengthening the relo'tionship~with DWP so.that we are
united around our.common purpose and get the best value from the differentioted BPDTS offer

Improvmg quality of service: Improvrng service quallty even further so that we rellobly dellver results
. that contrlbute real customer value and are underpinned by everydoy innovation

Developmg our people: Our people can bring their best,are oppropnctely recognised and supported in
. contmuolly developlng their talent, with an eye to the future

Supporting.our People We support our people with systems and processes that are eosy to use ond
robust, providing value for money .

,On 29th September 2020 the Tailored Review of BPDTS Limited Report and Recommendations was
. published. All of the recommendations have been accepted by DWP, Cabinet Office and approved by the
Secretary of State. This includes the creation of asingle, digital function within DWP and the closure of
BPDTS as an arm’s length body, a non-departmental public body and a limited compony This resulted in a
review of the deliverables within the strategic objectives but did not change the 4 miain'themes..

Each section-provides the performance of BPDTS against the key indicators.

11
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Strengthening Our Reloti‘onéhip'v'vith DWP .

Since the inception of BPDTS, there has been a clear focus by BPDTS on the service that we provide to-our
key customer in DWP. We have on a quarterly basis, provided a survey for completion and have used-a
net promotor score as the key indicator. This year we wanted to go beyond this high-level indicator and
really get to hear the voice of the customer. Firstly, we introduced the role of Partnership Leads, intended
to lead on ensuring that we have clear and honest conversations at worklng levels about challenges and
opportunities. We improved the survey experience of our customers in completing the survey by giving
personalised written communications and inviting 1:1 conversations with partnership leads and improving
data quality. The customer survey has become a powerful vehicle for identifying any issues early, spotting
opportunities for more services and respondmg to the changing business needs. Throughout 2020/21 the
custormer survey consistently achieved response rates.above 40%, more than double those during the
previous year, enabling-more meaningful conclusnons to be drawn. :

This focus on strengthenlng the relctlonshlp with DWP came paromount in suppdrting the work 'during _
the latter half of the year, of the Unity Programme which had respon5|bll|ty for mplementmg the
recommendations of the Tailored Review.

BPDTSEolle'agues have been involved at all levels and continue to promote the organisations culture and

" values to facilitate the co-design of the future vision for the single digitdl function.

BPDTS has maintained an ongoing commitment to ensure that we collaborate and operate in the.most
seamless and effective manner to get the most out of our complimentary service offer. We have focused

- on moving from the relationship being that of a customer/supplier towards being part of the family. Our
_ Practice Leads have worked with their communities in BPDTS and DWP to increase and promote a range of
~- regular knowledge sharing events. within and across practices for colleogues to combine efforts and share

learning. -

*.We have developed a set of consulting principles to spotlight BPDTS as a compelling alternative to

traditional systems integration and advisory services, as a value-driven partner rather than a profit driven
suppller Our aim being to support the W|der Dwp fom|ly which can be seen in the provision of successful
servicesto The Pensions Regulator. .

. m KPI / Torget Position at year end

Net Promoter Score. Annual Net Achieved
from the Customer ° Promoter Score
Satisfaction Survey  greater than or - [RAalalVe]Elelel{=3ael0)
' "+ équalto 10 (out
of a possible

score of 100)

Customer | Annual Customer  JAYaai[AVYel
Satisfaction Score Satisfaction
from the Customer  average greater Annual score: 3.74
Satisfaction Survey  than or equalto 3
"+ - "(outof apossible

score of 5)




"Im'proving,Se_’rv_iCe Quality

' Since BPDTS was establlshed we have been focussed on dellverlng an excellent service and whilst customer
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v

feedback has ir the main been positive, we believed that we could look to improve further. To do this we
agreed to focus on improving our understandtng of our customers practices and process and usmg thls
knowledge to provide a step chonge in the service provided.

Working with Government Digital Serwces we have developed the understondlng of our front-line service
providers so that these standards are applied consistently. To provide assurance a matrix assessment tool
was developed which provides confidence that this these'standards are being cpplled in the same manner

across DWF’ DIgItOl

- We have mvested in the training and development of our Serwce Management proctlce by creating anin .
house capability, we can train our own people to gain recognised qualifications ininformation technology,
this is a significant-achievement that was attained in a short period. The ability to train people will not be
lost when the single digital function is created in DWP as these skills will allow training to continue as we
work with DWP to develop a training plan for 2021/22. Digital Group.events have been established with
speakers from both organisations providing a forum where knowledge can be cascaded and problems
shared across DWP Digital and BPDTS Ltd. This common understanding has enabled improvements to
service to be made together. We have also embraced an ‘Innovate’ scheme for improvement ideas which.
has cultivated a positive drive for changes thct have benefited both BPDTS and DWP Dlgutol

To encouroge ond support our people in contnbutmg their expertise'to the digital industry more widely, a
self—monogmg Thought Leadership Community Interest for subject matter experts has been established.
We continue to encourage our experts to become thought leaders through attendance at conferences ond
mdustry events, sharing their learning with the company ond its customer.

Number- of days

between a candidate

applying for a role and
_receiving an offer

Number of applicants
each recruitment

campaign has attracted

Annual average of less
than or equal to 35 days
from application to offer -

-Annual-average of more

than or equal to 12 -
applicants per campaign

' - Percentage of
permanent employees
who have resigned

Annual rﬁonthty average
of less than or equal '

- to 8% permanent

resignations

Position at year end

Measured between April '20 - October 20
Not met
Annual average: 52 days

Recruitment was placed on hold due to COVID-19
between March and June. Where recruitment had
started prior to March offers could not be made
until June, extending the timeline beyond the
target

Measured between June '20 - October 20

Achieved

Annual average: 29 applicant’ per campaign
Achieved ¥

Annual monthly average: 6.8%

13
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Number of permanent
employees with less
than- 12 months service
who have resigned

- ‘Annualsumofno
more than 0 permanent

resignations with less
than 12 months service

‘Gap between humbers

of employees requested”

by DWP vs. number

supplied (Capacity Gap) -

End of year supply to be
within 5%.of demand

Not met °

Annual sum: 12 leavers with less than 12 months
service

Measured between April 20 - October ‘20

Not met

End of year position: 9.57%

8 1t was agreed with DWP that we would cease .

monitoring this measure once it was agreed that .
. BPDTS recruitment would cease. Between April*
and October the target was not met primarily
because of the pause on recruitment dueto
COVID 19. ' o




StrategicReport [l Il H W

DeVéloping To-leht IO | - @

We aim to make BPDTS a place for people to grow, developing technical skills and enhancing.leadership’
capability throughout the organisation. By implementing the British Computer Society Skills Portal, the

. professional body for computing, we were able to provide a holistic assessment of all our people’s skills
enabling a rapid response to the need to relocate people to home working during the pandemic whilst

" maintaining the most efficient workforce operational plan. We have listened and know that career mobility
is a real priority for our people, so our newly appointed practice’leads and experts in all roles created

role profiles providing a pathway for development. Using learning interventions, we have enabled those

in digital roles to have the ability to benchmark themselves against the Digital, Data and Technology
framework as well as variety of others, mcludmg the Skills Framework for the DlgItOl Age. This provides
employees with a structure to work towards their career aspirations, making it easier to identify training
plans and facilitate-future upskilling. in-some oreos for non-digital professionals BPDTS-specific frameworks
have been creoted : :

: Apprentlceshnps have continued to be ofgreot importance to BPDTS and we have sought to identify

-opportunities for growing ‘hard to recruit’ capabilityinternally. We have implemented the newly approved
external DevOps apprenticeship and continued to train a second cohort of internally recruited Site Reliability
Engineers to boost the growing service demand and offer enhanced career development opportunities. .

To enhance leadership capability, in particular improving consultancy and communication skills, we have
rolled out to our extended leadership team a profiling analysis tool that allows individuals to devel’op a
_greater understanding of their how they interact with others and an insight into how they can improve
- relationships with others. This supports one of our organisational culturol ambitions which is to have
outstanding leadership throughout the orgomsotlon ’

To increase monogers capability and confidence in people management skills we have delivered a suite
of training modules which include: diversity and inclusions, people performance, managing probation and
employment law. Finally, alongside our continued commitment to ensure the BPDTS culture is naturally
inclusive, we have proactively sought out ways to support our people through the COVID-19 pandemic.
Focusing on wellbeing initiatives to provide guidance and help to people as they adapt to new ways of .

" working and the inherent challenges. Even with the challenges we have faced over the last year, we have
" * seen our employee engagement index continue to improve from 55 to 68 points.

' m KPI/ Target Position at year end

Time spent on learning  Average of greater than-
and development or equal to 5 days per

opportunities” . person per year JAnnuallaverage3s¥sldaysiperperson]

15
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Supporting Our ,P'eople\ - o ' @:?

There were 3 key areas that we determined would help support our people:

Making our systems easy touse : .
We have received feedback from our people that some of the infrastructure that support our day to day

. activities did not provide the supporting management information that was needed and that the user

experience could be improved. This, combined with the findings from the external auditors in 2018-19

“that there was a lack of robust metrics, has led us to focus on how we can improve our systems so that

they are user friendly. Amendments to the main platform for our shared services solution were initially -
put on hold awaiting the outcome of the Tailored Review and then stopped due to the costs involved
once it was clear that the company was closing. We did develop and implement a new expenses system
to meet both the audit recommendations and i improve the userJourney

Improve the robustness of our control framework

Our ambition in this area was to strengthen the control framework by increasing financial and HR
expertise to provide additional capability in specialist management areas such as pensions, poyroll
organisational development, data-analysis, and information security and to set up governance forums to
provide technical assurance and oversight of the company IT portfolio and monitor a p|pel|ne of all IT

" -projects, to comply with-GDS spend controls. Initial work established a number of forums to support key

technical streams, these forums were then adapted to support the transition workstreoms tohelp the
merger of BPDTS with DWP. :

Ensure key processes meet orgonisotionol needs - -
At the start of the year we developed an improved workforce planning strategy, improving our
understanding of future demand, linking with our developing talent stream and understanding more

~ about the'career aspiration of our people. The agenda for the Service Delivery Board was amended to

include specific agenda items on workforce planning and voice of the customer section so that direct
feedback was given on the service provision and also about future needs. The Head of Digital Capability
led a workstream that ensured that recruitment and development was dovetailed into a ‘dernand
requirement’ strote'gy. Following the decision to close the company recruitment by BPDTS ceased. .

We conducted a root and branch review of our people related processes ensuring that they were written
in plain English and reflected our cultural aspirations. We developed a new performance management

" framework that embraced career conversations and regular objective setting and reviews creating a
"people-centric assessment process. ‘

m KPI / Target Position at year end

Employee engagement  Annual survey index
index . greater than or equal to

50 , Fndloflyearfposition:168]



“Finance and Control

StrategicReport 1 H H W

In addition to the 4 strategic objectives the Board also.monitored key ﬁnénce, audit action and control -
indicators that provide the Board with an overarching view of all elements of corporate business.

KPI / Target Position at year end '

Number of overdue - " No overdue audit actions | Adifizvasl
audit-actions - ~as at year end '
Percentage of time Utilisation rate greater:

utilised for customer
work

. than or equal to 90%

Number of days

~ employees were not
assigned to customer
work.

Annual monthly average
* less than or equal to 31

days

overheads
3

Proportion of spend on Overhead spend less than

or equal to 9% .

PAnnuallaverage3o¥e500
Measured between May '20 - March ‘21

g Not met. Annual monthly average = 100 days

Whilst the average number of days is the
primary measure BPDTS also reviewed the
number of individuals not assigned to specific
customer work, this provides a more granular

understanding of the data. The most individuals
in any month that were not assigned was 9.

The demand for work is given by the customer
and BPDTS worked closely with them to match

i individual skills to roles within a short time frame

as possible.
Achieved
Bicqdfofyeaposition 3270906

Number of red risks --

No red risks

MeasuredoetweenlNovemberg? ORIMarchRql}

| Avmrd e O sl @S
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Financial Outturn

The revenue outturn for 2020/21 was £82.6m This was higher than outturn for the previous reporting year
2019/20 (£73.5m) due mainly to the costs incurred in correcting the historical tax payments for contractors
under IR35 and aligning to the accounting prcctlces of BPDTS Ltd with those of DWP, aheod of the
company’s transfer into DWP. A

" The compony’operotes on a full cost recovery basis, focilitotedfby mbnfhly billing cycles with DWP. All goods ‘

and services chargeable by DWP to BPDTS are billed on a quarterly basis. The total outstanding loan value

. fromDWP was £10m as at 31 March 2021. No additional loans have been granted in 2020/21. The loan is
. to provide the necessary funding to allow BPDTS to cover its working capital commitments. BPDTS Ltd will

cease trcdlng on 30th June 2021 and the financial statements have been prepcred ona bOS|s other than
that of a gomg concern basis (see note 15). " : :

The costs set out inthis onnuol report relote to operotlng BPDTS and the assets owned and used by BPDTS
to deliver its services.
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‘Summary

N,

Despite the decision to close BPDTS Ltd and the challenges that we have faced as a consequence the key
business objectives have been successfully achieved. In addition to this, we have supported the Unity
Programme, which was established to implement the Tailored Review recommendations, this included the
development of a single, stronger digital organisation which will better equip DWP to deliver its strategic
goals of joined-up customer journeys across digital-first channels. BPDTS employees have worked with ,
DWP to support the transition process, positively engaging in workshops to support the- orrongements for -
transfer, technical data transition to ensure that contlnuotlon of employees whilst contmumg to deliver ..
-services to DWP Digital. 4

e
o —

Richard McHugh .
Chief Executive and Accountlng Ofﬂcer

13 October 2021

19.
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_ Role/Position Date Appointed and Term
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Direct'orsi’ report

The Directors of BPDTS 2020/21

Richard McHugh . Chief Executive & Appointed 1 Jan 2021 for 1 year
A ~ Accounting Officer S » '
Loveday Ryder Chief Executive & Appointed on 22 Jan 2018 fo_r 18 months and further
, ' Accounting Officer ~ extended until 31 Jan 2021. Resigned 31 Dec 2020
Mal Singh . Chief Finance Officer Appointed on 1 Apr 2019 for 2 yeors Re5|gned on 31
Mar 2021
Jeremy Moore CB Chai & Non-Executive Appomted on 1 Jan 2019 for'S years
A "' Director - - Chdir of Board from 01 Jan 2019
' Valerie Gordon- - Non-Executive Director - Appointed on 1 Jan 2019 for 5 years
Walker o o ‘ - Chair of Remuneration Committee from 1 Apr 2019
Ian Wilson - Non-Executive Director  Appointed on 1 Jun 2018 for 5 years
o : ' Chair of Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee from 18
Oct 2018
Koﬁe Kapernaros - Non-Executive Director ~ From.1 Feb 2019 for 3 years
John Osmond OBE Noh;ExecutiveADirecth‘A From 1 Feb.2019 for 3 years

b Independentmerﬁbers _ . - L -

_ Role/Position Date Appointed and Term B

" Debbie Alder Independent Member  Appointed on:1 Apr 2019 without @ specified-term as
: L of Remuneration Independent member of Remuneration Cornmittee
~Committee - :
Paul Greening ~~ . Independent Member  Appointed on 8 Jan 2020 for 5 yedrs asan

of Audit, Risk and independent member of ARAC
Assurance Committee .

The D|rectors present their- annual report on the cffours of BPDTS together W|th the ﬂnoncuol stotements and
auditor’s report for the year ended 31 March 2021. :

The financial statements hdve been prepored« in accordance with the Componieé Act 2006 and, as -

appropriate, the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and other guidance issued by HM Treasury

. and the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions where the disclosure requirements of these go beyond the
-requurements of the Companies Act 2006

In accordance with the International Financial Reportlng Stondcrds as odopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs)

and the guidance from the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, the financial
statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors. The Governance statement and the
Remunerotlon and staff report followmg this section form part of this report.
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Principal activities

~BPDTS Ltd is a private compony ds deﬁned by the Componles Act 2006, llmlted by guorontee with the
reference number 10344843, : e

BPDTS was mcorporoted.on 24 Au'gust 2016, with the principal objective to deliver information technology
and security services to DWP. BPDTS services are required to support DWP’s mission and objectives and its
statutory functions and other respon5|b|lrtres in.accordance with DWP’s priorities and in compliance with its
,governonce orrongements :

‘The smgle most important event during 2020/21 was the announcement cnd the closure of BPDTS L|m|ted

Going concern basis

In accordance with their responsibilities, the Directors have considered the approprloteness of the going .
concern basis for the preparation of the financial stotements . .

Durlng the reporting period, BPDTS’ expendrture was £82.6m, motched by income of £82.6m from DWP.
Expenditure and income match because BPDTS is required, under agreements with DWP, to opeérate on a fult
cost recovery basis, without making a profit. As at 31 March 2021, BPDTS hod assets less current llobrlrtres
netting out to zero.. . .

On 29th September 2020 the Tailored Review of BPDTS Limited Report and Recommendations-was
published. All of the recommendations have been accepted by DWP, Cabinet Office and approved by the
Secretary of State. This includes the creation of a single, digital function within DWP and the closure of
BPDTS as an Arm s length body, a non-departmental public body and a l|m|ted company.

BPDTS Ltd ceased trodlng on 30 June 2021 and the ﬂnoncrol stotements have. been prepored on a basis

other than that of a going concern (see note 15).

As the recommendations of the Tailored Review are implemented the Master Services Agreement between
'BPDTS Ltd and DWP, will cease on 30 June 2021 along with funding. On this date all staff will be TUPE'd 'into
-~ DWP and BPDTS Ltd will no longer provide ony services. Durrng the followrng months BPDTS will finalise its
" accounts and close as a company. :

D|V|dends

"BPDTS Ltd is a pnvote company l|m|ted by guorontee it has no share capital and therefore does not pay
. d|V|dends . : o

Informutlon security

The Dlrectors recognise their responsnblhtles under the UK Data Protection Act 2018, which received Royal
"Assent on 23.May 2018 and the enforcement period for General Data Protection Regulahons (GDPR) which
came into force on the 25 May 2018. We-ensure that personal and commercial information is protected -
~against internal and external threats, loss or misuse. Our policy is to self-refer all significant data incidents
to the Information Commissioners’ Office (ICO) and.we work closely with the ICO and our partner agency to
further improve our systems and learn lessons. Iri 2020/21 one complaint was raised with BPDTS by the ICO
under the Data Protection ACt/GDPR for investigation. The ICO confirmed that there was no further action -
required following the investigation. Subsequent changes are reviewed on an ongoing basis to-ensure they
comply with DWP’s security standards, and with the standards deﬁned in 1S027001. The same stondords
«are being used in service agreements with suppllers

BPDTS has agreed a Master Services .Agreement exit plan with DWP which outlines the actions to be taken
prior to the cessation of the DWP service requirements of BPDTS, this includes a full GDPR review of BPDTS.

informaticn assets. This review commenced in January 2021 and will form port of the compony closure/

tronsfer documentotlon :

BPDTS is a member of the DWP Arm’s length body Security and Data Protection Forum, where good practice

and lessons learned are shared. This forum provides BPDTS with dccess to key security leads in DWP where

.. any issues can be discussed and supports the hormonrsmg of processes whilst retaining the independence
of a limited company.
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BPDTS employees also complete the mandatory information assurance training provided by DWP
which covers key areas of data security ensuring that we alt understand the importance of keeping the
informotion that we work with secure and how to identify and report information. :

Employment and Inclusuvrty

" During the early part of 2020 we continued to work on ortrculotrng our Employee Value Proposrtron

(EVP) both internally and externally to support our future vision, based on a “positive, innovative and
entrepreneurial brand”. We focused on our social purpose and total reward and remuneration, specifically

“on those employees below the lower quartile compdred to the market data and investing in people through
. the provision of learning and development giving real ﬂeX|b|lrty in the learning career. Our EVP strategy also

includes recognition, for exceptronol performance and contribution, Smarter working, trusting our people to
know when, where and how best to work and the wellbeing for our employees which is at the heart of our
offer, with strong company support for diversity and inclusion, disability and mental health awareness.

In September 2020 the outcome of the Tailored Review was published, which triggered the beginning of the
closure of BPDTS and the insourcing of our people to DWP. The focus of our work on our own EVP switched
to the transfer of all people to DWP, working collaboratively with our counterparts to ensure that the best of
ourculture, processes and proctrce is brought with us when we do. . :

In Morch 2020 we, like mony other businesses, made the decision that all our employees would work from

home in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The organisational priorities shifted to business contlnurty
and supporting our people through the pandemrc mainly through working from home. Policy was updated
at record speed to support things like the reportlng COVID- 19 sickness, special leave ond purchosrng
equment to work from.home. :

AlongS|de this, our Noturolly Inclusive and Wellbeing group came into lts own producing a raft of support
measures focusing on wellbeing and mental health. In addition, our stoffgroups grew toinclude LGBTQ+,

- disability and Race Forward and we supported them with budget, time and senior sponsarship, including co-

mentoring. The focus on individual and teams to connect, get active, take notice, keep leornrng and grve to
others, flowed through our. messaging during the critical times of the pandemic.

Informlng and consulting employees

Following the Tailored Review and the announcement that BPDTS would close and all employees would
transfer to DWP via TUPE, the focus on engaging with our people was never more important.

Informing and consulting is not only a legal requirement ofo TUPE, but a necessity, and resource and
attention was diverted to ensure that the consultation process was planned and delivered in a timely

and transparent manner by engaging with our newly appointed Employee Forum. Fresh elections were
undertaken to elect an Employee Forum thot everyone in the Organisation could engage with and feel they
were part of.

The Employee Forum reps receivédfor_m‘ol training on the legal process and significant HR support

throughout the process and were engaged in a three-month formal consultation process where they

. actively engaged with their colleagues across the organisation on the proposed medsures by DWP.

Monogers were invited to sessions on the TUPE process.and grven reqular updotes and support on.how the
transfer was progressung

Alongside the TUPE process, BPDTS used a variety of orrongements durrng the year to inform employees
about other key developments, and engagement continued via staff surveys and All Colleague Calls. In
addition to communications through line management, the company’s new intranet was a key-means of
providing written news and seeking comments from. staff. There is also ample opportunity for engogement
through practice and team meet ups. - :

Personal dato related mudents

" There were 13 personal data relot-ed incidents in 2020/21, none of which met the threshold to report the
" “incident to the Information Commissioner Office. In"2002/21 we had no Data Protection Act Right to Access -

Requests and six requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. These have been responded to

appropriately and within the prescribed timescales. -
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Environmental matters , i

BPDTS operates out of DWP hub locotlons and offices ond supports DWP’s strotegles in relot|on to
_ sustolnob|l|ty : A
Health und sofety

The Training and Risk Assessments for Health and Sofety (TARAHS) was mtroduced on 15 July 2020
‘providing an online training tool which consolidates BPDTS mandatory training in one place’'and includes:

+ Health & Safety Responsrbllrtres for Managers
~+_Personal Health and Safety
+ DSE Risk Assessment

. Securlty and Resrhence .

Mondotory training, e.g. Security & Resmence is ohgned onnuolly with DWP

Al employees are required to complete the training modules and compliance is monitored and reported.
This provides assurance that our employees undertake the’'same mandatory trornnng as DWP as we use the
DWP infrastructure and accommodation.

“In 2020/21 we reported no accidents under Reportlng of Injuries, Diseases ond Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR) to the Heolth ond Sofety Executive (HSE).

‘ Auditors - _ 3 i
The Comptroller and Auditor Generol (C&AG) is the statutory external auditor of BPDTS Ltd.

The C&AG is an offcer of the House of Commons and leads the Notronol Audit Office (NAQ). The C&AG
- certifies the accounts of all government ‘departments and many other public sector bodies and has
statutory authority to examine and report to Parliament on whether Departments, and the bodles they
" fund, have used their resources efficiently, effectlvely and with economy

. The audit of BPDTS’ annual accounts is undertoken by the National Audit Ofﬁce on behalf of the C&AG. The
NAO is- independent of government and their purpose is to scrutinise public spending for Parliament.

Internal audit is provided by the Government Internal Audit Agency '(GIAA) Who will review policy and
prcrctlce process, compllonce administration, communlcotuon and tronnlng, quollty, assurance ond
|mprovements :

The internal audit programme is undertoken in conformonce with the Publlc Sector Internal Audlt Stondords ’

(PSIAS).

Eoch of the Directors individually confirms at the date of approval of this report thot~

- . so far as the Director i |s aware, there is no relevant information of Wthh the BPDTS externdl oudltor is
unaware; and

- The Director has taken all the steps that he/she 'ought to have taken as d director to make himself/
- herself aware of any relevant information'and to estobllsh that the BPDTS’ oudltor is aware of thot
mformotlon : :

This confirmation is given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the. prowsmns of $418 of the
' Componles Act 2006. -

'Approved by the Boord and srgned on its behalf by:

Richard McHugh
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer

13 October 2021
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Govemonce Statement

BPDTS Ltd was set up as a company. llmlted by guorontee The Secretory of State for Work and Pen5|ons is
the sole member of BPDTS.

BPDTS is an arm’s length body of DWP and o}non—deportr’nentol public body, with the Chief Executive. Officer
appointed as Accounting Officer with accountabilities and responsibilities delegated by DWP’s Principal
Accounting Officer. The CEQ is also the Consolidation Officer for the purpose.of Whole of Government
Accounts. The Accounting Officer responsibilities are set out in the Framework Document and in HM

~ Treasury’s Managing Public Money. The Chief Executive has responsibility for doy -to- doy operations and hos
.specific responsibilities for BPDTS employees

BPDTS is commltted to the principles contoined in'the UK Corporate Governance code issued by the Financial
Reporting Council. The Board has had regard to the principlés set out in the code insofar as they are

‘ ' opproprlote to BPDTS as a.non-departmental public body of DWP ond given its size.

Board composntlon

* The composition of the Boord 5 non-executive directors and 2 executive directors’ remolned consistent

throughout the year and was not impacted by COVID-19. At the end of December 2020, the Chief Executive
of BPDTS, Loveday Ryder resigned and was replaced by Richard McHugh. This appointment was made ona
temporary basis until December 2021 due to the closure of the company.

The Board is responsible for setting company strategy, compony risk oppetlte opprovol of major items of
expenditure and the establishment and monitoring of internal controls. It reviews the strategic direction of
BPDTS and monitors its progress towards the achievement of its budgets and plan. The Board has 2 sub-
committees: the Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee (ARAC).and Remuneration Committee.

The Board met 7 times during the reporting period, including an extraordinary session. ARAC met 4 times -
during the year. The Remuneration Committee met 5 times in the year. The meetings of the Boagrd and sub-
committees continued during COVID-19 via video conferencing and this did not impact on their decision-
making ob|l|ty The table below shows the number of meetlngs compared to those ottended by members.

Board meetings | RemCo meetings | ARAC meetings

Richard McHugh (Ch|ef Executuve & Accountmg

Officer) . ) .

Loveday Ryder (Chief Executive & Accountlng Ofﬂcer) 6/6 E 3/3 - - 3/3.
" Mal Singh (Chief Finance Officer) - . 717 5/5 . A

Jeremy Moore (Chair & Non-Executive Director) 717 - N/A ) N/A

Valerié Gordon-Walker (Non-Executive Director) : 717 o 5/5. ‘ N/A -

Ian Wilson (Non-Executive Director) 717 © N/A 414

Katie Kapernaros (Non-Executive Director) | 717 5/5 N/A

*John Osmond (Non-Executive Director) ) 717 " N/A 414
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Board meetlngs RemCo meetings | ARAC meetings

Debbie Alder

: -(Independent Member appointed 1 April 2020)

Paul Greening

(Independent Member oppomted 8 Jan 2020).

N/A

N/A 4l4-

'BPDTS ensures that the Board and its sub- commlttees receive timely and relevant monagement ‘
information, comprehenswe analysis and sound advice to facilitate informed decision making. Followmg
the announcement of the Tailored Review and the introduction of the Unity Programme (established to
-implement the recommendations of the Tailored Revuew) in addition to BPDTS business, the Board has
received regular updates from the.Programme ensuring that BPDTS Directors were abreast of the progress

o _being made and the timeline that was being followed. The Directors were provided with clear advice on

their roles and responsibilities during the transition period and-have agreed the closure timetable for BPDTS
.- Limited. The BPDTS Chcur was invited and ogreed to Chair the Unlty programme.

}

BPDTSAB_oard Audit Risk onq Assurance Remuneration Committee :
R Committee

- Jeremy Moore Ian Wilson Valerie Gordon-Walker
(S ] .
" | The BPDTS ARAC is a sub-
2 committee of the BPDTS Board - ‘
= . ~ of Directors. The role of ARAC. To oversee the desian of and
g " Res onsible for errseein the‘ is to support the Directors and . recommend to thegBoor’d an
5 | | pd hio and directi 9 ¢ . Accounting Office by reviewing " ; 1
8 eadership and direction o the comprehensiveness of overall remuneration policy
k3 BPDTS.in delivering the aims assurances in meeting the and philosophy that is aligned
= and obJectlve of the compony‘ Boord and Accouniting Officer’s with its butSItnessgtroltegy, risk
o ' ~ assurance needs and reviewing APPELAE and vailes
‘ % the reliability and integrity of
[ _ these assurances -
Revurefw red ;:gedeicelfcsl'? d Each meeting has reviewed '
’ megsn;\;i]th a focus on key. .the s‘trotegic:processes fo“r The remuneration committee
erformance indicators that risk and controlincluding risk has considered all pa -
pv{/er outside of toleroneé = appetite, risk evaluation and recommendations and a yreed
€ outs - effectiveness of mitigating the BPDTS pay award mglme
The Chief Finance Officer controls. , with HMT guidance and
pfflisentefi to t?e Bo?rd tf;e The sub-committee oversees opprovol fror:téftwee Secretary of.
. nancia rfmgztl'r?n ateac ‘the handling of all internal and
b ' 9 external audit matters. This The remunerotuon committee
2 included discussion around the . :
b including a review of ’ of recommendations from ‘provided with the review
S ' deliverables following the - both internal and external - ofinternal audit onthe
a : (NAO) audit reports
- announcement to close the assessment of our response

i P .~ company.

| AShow and Tell has been

. "held at each meeting where
_ | employees have presented to
’ I the Board details of key work

i areas and how they deliver for

| the customer.

Recommended to the Board to

- approve the annual report and .

accounts (2019/20)

" ARAC aligned-with RemCom
in considering the corrective
action for the pension .

- deduction work and the pay in

month

. The committee contlnued
to receive assurance of the
improvements that have been
made to the oversight that
BPDTS has of suppliers who

deliver HR functions i.e. payroll

and pensions
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The.Board, iri light of the ARAC, aligning to the Board R'EMCOM -aligning to the Board

’ : closure of BPDTS, agreed that  decision agreed that the Board * decision, agreed that the Board

g J the Board Effectiveness survey Effectiveness survey would Effectiveness survey would

[~ @ | wouldfocus on key elements - focus on key elements of focus on key elements of

E g' [ of governance and leadership. governance and leadership. _ governance and leadership.

2l : . .

{ o | . There was a 90% response - . There wasa 90% response - There.was a 85% response
E \ rate and the responses were - rate and the responses were rate and the responses were
- -+ Positive with no further actions  positive with no further actions  positive with no further actions
5 agreed. - ' agreed. ~agreed. -

3 .

All actions from the 2019/20 - Alr actions frorn the 2019/20 Al actions from the 2019/20
| survey had been actioned and  survey had been actioned and - survey had been actioned and -

!
t
|
E - . noted by the Board. noted by the Committee. " noted by the Committee.

The following section sets out the system of control that the Board and Accounting Officer have put'in A
place and the assurances which they have received from the BPDTS Executive Team (see below) and from
the internal audit service provided by the Government Internal Audit Agency, onhow the system of control

" is operating. It concludes with the Accounting Officer's assessment of the effectiveness of the system of

control and sets out any.control issues which the Board judges to be significant.

Sys_tem of control'

‘BPDTS is principdlly governed by:

» Company law and the Articles of Association

+ Agreements between DWP and BPDTS such as: Fromework Agreement Master Servrces Agreement
Support Services Agreement and Funding Facility Agreement

» The Accounting Officer’s responsibility for BPDTS expenditure and moncgement

~ « The BPDTS Board’s collective responsibility for advice on strateglc and operotronol Issues, ond for

scrutinising and challenging policies and performance

o +The system of control includes the Board sub-committees and work- undertaken and supported by the

BPDTS Executive Team, along with the control framework, which is supported by internat and external.
audit assurance processes

.+ The control framework is intended to provide appropriate and- proportronote sofeguords taking into

account the accountabilities of BPDTS its relationship-with DWP and its ploce wrthrn the Department’s
strategic plans
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The key elements of the 'control' framework are articulated in the following table:

Control
Area

Business

Description

Processes and
controls for agreeing
services and
deliverables with

-.DWP

Risks Addressed

Disruption in service
and failure to fulfil-
demand for new
services inatimely - -
fashion '

Accountability

Head of Service
Delivery.and Head
of Digital Capability
enacted through
the BPDTS Senior
Leadership Team

Methodology

.Control is exercised

through good

- management practice

and stakeholder

engagement supported
by a robust framework

of Key Performance
Indicators. Monthly

compliance checks are

carried out providing
assurance at-our

~_policies are adhered to.

People

Processes arid

~ controls for accounts -

payablé and
receivable, financial
reporting, budgetary
management and -
procurement

Inability to induct
successfully

Inability to adapt -
to requirement
variation

Increased attrition -
through poor . -
management of
those awaiting
assignment

Declining utilisation "
rates '

Culture fragmenting

‘Head of Service

Delivery and Head

of Digital'Capability
_ supported by. the
- Head of People and

enacted through
the BPDTS Senior
Leadership Team

- especially working

with the HR
business partners

Control is exercised

through Practice

management,
stakeholder - -

- engagement, Key
Performance Indicators,

clear corporate

_communications and
governance assurance

functions .

Finance

Information
Security

Prof;esses and
controls for accounts
payable and

- receivable, financial
reporting, budgetdry” -

management and.

- procurement’

‘ Fraud

“Inability to plan
“recruitment and

investment . .

Instability in
financial forecasting

Misuse of Public

Funds

_ Accountability is
. through the Chief

Financial Officer
with support from
Head of Service
Delivery and Head

.- ‘of Digital Capability,

Control is exercised

. through robust financial
planning.and consulting

with DWP-Digital

Financial forecasting as
‘well as digital practice |

leads to ensure our

financial processes can
remain adaptive but

still deliver-required
assurances

Processesand

. controls for the

secure credtion,

. use, storage and
.destruction of

business information
in compliance k
with UK Data -
Protection Act -
2018 and Gerneral
Data Protection

. Regulations (GDPR) .

whic¢h came into

force in 2018

Inability to use DWP .
information safely,
risk of fraud, of
personal or citizen
data breach or -
corporate espionage -

Accountability is
with the Head of
Governance' .

Control is exercised -
through adherence to
the InfoSec Policies -
of DWP for delivery .
on DWP systems and
information, and

through BPDTS' own =~

policies of Corporate
Information, including
Incident Management

~and learning.
‘Framework and the
- Information Security

Policy. All of which .-

have been developed -

to dovetail with DWP
policies
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The Executive Team

‘As Chief Executive and Accounting Officer, I am responsible for maintaining a robust éystém of internal

control that helps us achieve our policies, aims and objectives, while safeguarding public funds and our
assets. With my Executive Team, I run and manage BPDTS and ensure it is dellvenng servnces to the

‘ SOtleOCtIOh of DWP.

Executive Team members have appropriate délegoted management and risk management authority. They .
escalate risks which they cannot mitigate themselves or which may affect other business areas to Executive
Team meetings, so as to reach a collective decusmn '

Chief Executive and Accounting Officer

queday Ryder' ) Resigned 31t December 2020

Mal Sin‘gh"_ ‘ ' ] . ) i * Chief Finance Ofﬁcer Resugned 31 March 2021
Julian Bhlﬁam - A " Head of Engage

Clare Millington-Hume I Head of People

: Héod of Digital Delivery until 31st December 2020

Richard McHugh N Chief Executive and. Accountlng Ofﬂcer from 1st

_January 2021 ‘
Sharon Merrison . ) : . Head of Service Delivery (from 1st Jonuory 2021) -
Dave Hall - . . Head of Digital Capobmty (from 1st Jonuory 202 1)
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~ Risk Management Framework

"During 2020/21 BPDTS revised the risk management framework adopting an approach that encourages
‘risk reporting throughout the organisation and providing a single reporting solution. To ensure that the new
processes were embedded in the organisation all functions within the orgomsatlon were provided with
training. The fromework conforms to the Orange Book standards. .

At the start of the yeor risk manogement was primarily focussed on delivery of the organisation’s strategic

aims, however, as the COVID pandemic gripped the country and forced organisations to adapt their working -

practices to protect their employees. BPDTS introduced a risk register to manage the key risk areas that

" the company faced os a result of the pandemic ensuring mitigation actions were swiftly put into action

* to ensure that there was no disruption to the service provided to our customer. The GIAA audit that =
was carried out on business contnnunty, which included how-we responded to the pondem;c recelved o

“substantial assessment. : :

A third risk register was also presented at Board level folloWing the announcement to close the company
and transition.employees to DWP, this focussed on the risks to BPDTS’ ability to continue to dellver the
service to DWP during the transition phose :

The strategic, COVID and transitions risk registers provided the Boord ond sub committees W|th up-to-date
and accurate information ensuring they have a clear oversight of the risks faced by BPDTS. The Executive
Team regularly reviewed and managed these risks aiming to mitigate the rlsk and prevent them from
becomlng an issue that inhibited the operotlons of BPDTS.

All risks are scored against llkellhood and impact and compared to the toleronce levels setoutin the risk
oppetute If a risk exceeds the risk oppetlte tolerance level ARAC and the Board are informed.

RISk appetite

This statement sets out how we balance nsk and opportumty in pursunt of achieving our obJectlves It forms -
a key element of our governance and reporting framework and is set by the board: ARAC reviewed the

risk appetite in April 2020 and considered whether the COVID-19 outbreak required any elements of the
staternent to be revised. The Commlttee consndered thlS and agreed that there was no change to the nsk
appetite. .

Overarching BPDTS is open about taking risks; nevertheless we assess the llkely impact and beneﬂts
. statement . each time, meaning we do nottake every risk presenteéd, we take decisions and prioritise
based on cost, benefit, proximity and likelihood. We map risk management into our
range of business plon deliverables to ensure transparency ond accountability for the
evolvmg picture : :

. Reputation and ‘We hove a minimolist oppetite for workihg in any way that may calt into scrl.itiny
-credibility the service relationship with DWP and the structure by which DWP commissions and
© . accounts for the BPDTS serwces it requires .

- Operational and While the overriding operational approoch is to be open in the consideration of

policy delivery  risk versus benefit, it is notable that when it comes to being responsible for major

: ' operational failure, every effort is made to-ensure BPDTS working practices do not
compound the residual risks associated with DWP’s operational systems .
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. Financial/VFM We adopt a cautious approach to financial risk as a result of needing to ensure that
' the delivery of the organisation’is fully aligned to.the core business needs of the client.
. Where we are being any more dynamic, we remain within the scrutinised overhead
~ parameters set W|th the Service Deluvery Board, which necessarnly constroms our risk
appetite. : . '

We are averse to the risks. of internal fraud and fraudulent behaviour and will maintain
appropriately robust controls and sanctions to mGX|m|se prevention, detection and
deterrence of this type-of behaviour :

Compliance - We take a cautious approach to ensuring we remain compliant and are able to give the
A legal/regulatory _ DWP the assurances that we will not be exposing them to unnecessary risk. This includes
. the Company’s responsibilities under the Data Protection Act and the General Data
Principles Regulations that we follow to protect the personal information that we hold

The risk appetite and risk registers are presented to each Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee (ARAC) .
meeting, who, following a challenge session, recommend to the Board the risk appetite and register

with any changes. The roles and responsibilities for the Board and Executive Team in relation to risk are
shown below, providing clorlty of the division of responsibility. No risk was assessed to be outside of the -

. organisations stated appetite in relation to strategic delivery,: however the transition risk reguster identified a
- number of risks that fell outside of the toleronce levels:

Underspend/overspend of budget

* » BPDTS maintaining service following TR onnouncement including the risk of an |ncreosed numbers of
incidents as experienced staff left, relotlonshlp between BPDTS and DWP detenoroted ond the loss of key
HQ staff leaving o .

At the end of 2020/21 all risks had been mltugoted to thelr torget level or below and within the oppetlte
toleronce .

' Roles‘, Responsibilities and Exercise of. Duty

‘Board Sets the risk appetite and ensures the risk =~ - Exercised formally at Board . -
’ management framework is opproprlote and meetings every 2 months,
operatmg effectlvely ' . through the ARAC, plus bi-annual
. . ' © risk appetite revnew and strategic
risk review
Executive = Implements risk managefnent in BPDTS and is Exercised fortnightly through
Team (ET) accountable for the management and mitigation ET team meetings and formally
: : of the strategic risks dssigned to them for .- through ET strategy sessions

mitigation. The management of risk mitigation every 2 months
occurs through the BPDTS Executive Team :
activities and Business Plan milestones

Corporate V Administers the Risk Mahdgément Framework. .Development‘ond monitoring -

Governance  Provides challenge and experience-on the effective  activity conducted day-to-day. :
Team management of risk in BPDTS and to work with Coordination of, and support to,.
' * external controls and compllonce , ' the formal risk discussions at the

ET, ARAC and Board

Assurance

ARAC reviews the risk management framework and validdtes the Executive’s practices and responses
with Government Internal Audit Agency (GIAA) providing their-internal audit assurance. The Corporate
Governance Team regularly monitors and reviews the BPDTS risks and working with the Executive Team to
ensure that the rmtlgotlon actions are proportionate-and suf’r’aent We operote 3 lines of defence which
provides a hlerorchlcol system of assurance. :
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BPDTS BOARD & AUDIT AND RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE I .

SENIOR MANAGEMENT - R |

. . Lot . N —
1 Line Defence - 2" Line Defence 3 Line Defence E)
Management Control | Internal Controt .| Oversee and specialise in risk monagement " Internal Audit 2
. - ' . - g
Management have primary ownership, Supports management (1st Line) by bringing Objective of the fr k of ©
responsibility and accountability . expertise, process excellence governance, risk management and contral v/ ©
Identify and assess ‘| Functions and activities thut‘anitors and . Proactive evaluation of controls proposed o -
. facititates the implementation of risk . by management v~ A4l

Check and Test (compliance)

tionat
Exception Reporting Proportionate

Organisational procedures
Strategy and Risk Policy v/
Review & Sign Off - Incident Management

foyiny s;:a[ojd 9 3INIINASDAUT

Corrective Actions

Responsibility for risk

Monthly compliance checks were carried out throughout the year providing assurance to the Board of
compliance to processes, any exceptlons that were idéntified were reported to the Audrt Risk and Assuronce
Committee. . :

Assuronce about the operotron of
the system of control

As Accounting Officer, I have the responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. The executive managers keep me informed of the systems and processes that are in place and
report any incidents through Executive Team meetings and where appropriate via ARAC. The processes that
we have in place to ensure that we are able to able to-provide assurance through our reporting are subject
to continuous improvement and review to ensure that they are current, effective and relevant.

In addition, the Board and I gain assurance through: '

up-to-date and comprehensive reports on performance and finance at all Board meetings

. we have introduced greater rigour in the monthly meetings that we hove with 3rd party prowders which
are minuted : : :

« ARAC overseeing the adequacy and effectrveness of the risk monogement processes with a full risk
register presented at each meeting

Following the NAO audit of 2019/20 BPDTS introduced a new outhorlsotlon process for the submlssron of
changes to the payroll system alongside improved trocklng of version control. :

Internal audit

The third line of defence, which includes Internal Audit, collectively forms a view of the robustness of
* the design and operations of the systems of control that are in place. These controls are subject to our
internal audit programme. BPDTS, throughout the year, worked with internal audit to ensure that all
- recommendations from prewous audits e. g risk management, were. |mplemented

ARAC has taken assurance from the conclusions of internal qudit reviews. It has also token assurance by

making enquiries of management in relation to subjects such as financial controls, risk management,
whnstleblowrng and fraud.
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In 2020/21, our internal ouditors (GIAA) carried out a programme of audits across the business.

They unde‘rtook audits on:

+ Business Continuity
+ Incident Management -
+ . Pay Award Review

The most signiﬂ.cont recommendations were related to the Pay Award Review some of which mirrored those
of the NAO in relation to authorisation and version control. All recommendotiohs have now been actioned.

Agreed actions and timeline for each recommendotlon has been agreed ond there are no overdue
outstanding actions.

Assurance 0p|n|on of the Head of Internal Audit

The Head of Internal Audit, Robert Evans, provides independent assurance to our CEO and the Board
{via the Audlt and Risk Assuronce Committee - ARAC) as follows.

“I communicate rmy conclusions on the overall adequacy and effectlveness of the orgonlsotuon S
framework of governance, risk management and control through my-annual internal audit opinion
“and report. This summarises the year’s internal audit activity, supported by my knowledge of the
business, and informs BPDTS’s governance statement. It concludes on'the overall adequacy and
" effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, nsk management and control.

I am providing an overall MODERATE opinion on the framework of governance, risk manogement
and internal control within BPDTS Limited for 2020-21 (2019-20: Moderate). In reaching this opinion,
I have carefully considered the impact of the Tailored Review on the number and breadth of audits
conducted during the year, the status of outstanding audit recommendations, and the outcome of
the one case reviewed by Counter Fraud & Investigations.

Prior to September 2020, two out of the five reviews on the annual audit plan resulted in two
Substantial assurance opinions (business continuity and incident management). After the Tailored
Review was published, I reviewed with BPDTS management the relevance of the remaining reviews
on the plan, which resulted in two reviews Corporate Governance in the Corporate Centre and
Target Operating Model being dropped from the plan. The review on the Pay Award did go ahead
as planned and this resulted in a Moderate assurance opinion. I have also engaged with the
Unity Programme:Director to keep up to date on the progress of the Programme, its key risks and
challenges all of which indicate that the Programme is being well managed which is also a view
shared by DWP Risk Management Division. I am satisfied that despite not completing all reviews
on the plan, there is no limitation of scope in my assurance activity as coverage for the year in the
* circumstances has been.sufficient.

Six recommendation,s were made for 2020-21 with four outstanding but not yet due (Pay Award).
‘These four recommendations relate to the improvement of pay award controls and management
-intend to address these by implementing and documenting improved processes to include version .
control of key supporting documents, the provision of stronger evidence to underpin calculations
and ensure appropriate oversight and approval of awards. We continue to track implementation
‘progress and expect these to be fully implemented when due by 31 May 2021”

Robert Evans
.Head of Internal Audit
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Duta losses .

In the Directors Report 13 personol data related incidents in 2020/21 are recorded none of which met the
threshold to report the incident to the Information Commrssroner Ofﬁce There have been no other lapses in
our protectrve secunty

“Fraud und Whlstleblowmg

Over the year there were no recorded mcrdents of fraud.

- We have encouroged employees to speak up about alleged wrongdoing, whether that is over.a personal
matter (via the grlevonce pollcy) or over a public interest concern (as whistleblowing). BPDTS provides

- a whistleblowing service via Government Internal Audit Agency, providing a confidential service to all

~ employees that wish to raise a concern about public interest ‘protected disclosures, that-are covered by the
whistleblowing legislation. All whistleblowing concerns are-allocated to a member of the executive team-
for initial assessment and where appropriate further investigation. Every report was taken serrously There
have been two whistleblowing cases raised under the BPDTS Speaking Up Policy. Investigations | coricluded
that the complaints reloted to employees personol treatment rather than to publrc interest ‘protected
dlsclosures .

As Chief Executive I am pleosed to report improvement.in both financial controls and our risk management
framework during this penod I am satisfied that we have effective governance, risk management and
assurance arrangements in place as set out in this statement. Arrongements are kept under’ contlnuous
review to adapt to our chongrng risk envrronment

Iam sotlsﬁed that the strategic rrsk that we corry forword into 202 1/22 major control failure and culture

are being managed effectively. I am also satisfied with how we manage and implement recommendotrons ‘
.. from'both Internal Audit and the National Audit Office.” :

- Richard McHugh
* Chief Executive and Accountlng Officer

13 October 2021
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Statement of Directors’ and
Accounting Officer’s responsnbllltles
in respect of ﬂnancml statements

The Dlrectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report ond the ﬁnonCIol statements in accordance

~with applicable law and regulations.

Compony law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for eoch financial year. Urider that low
the Directors are required to prepare the financial stotements in accordarice with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU). Under compony taw the Directors must

not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true-and fair view of the state ofcffo|rs
of BPDTS and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preporlng the accounts BPDTS is required to comply with the requirements of the Cornponles Act 2006

and the Financial Reporting Manua! (FReM) and in particular to:
«  Properly select and apply accounting policies;

+  Present information, including accounting. pohcues in a manner thot prowdes relevont relloble
* comparable ond understandable information;

+ Provide oddmonol disclosures when compliance wnth the specific requirements in IFRSs are msufﬁcuent
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s ﬁnoncuol position and financial performance; :

+  Make an assessment of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern;

*+ Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain BPDTS transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financiol position of
BPDTS and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Componles Act 2006.

Directors are also-responsible for safeguarding the assets of BPDTS.and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

This report was opproved by the Board of Directors and is signed by the Accounting Ofﬁcer who is also a
Director, on behalf of the Board of Directors.

The Principal Accounting Ofﬁcer for Work and Pensmns has deS|gnoted me, a Dlrector and Chuef Executive
Officer, as Accounting Officer for BPDTS Ltd.

The responsibilities of an Accountmg Officer, mcludung responS|buluty for the propriety and regulonty of
the public finances for which the Accounting Officer is answerable, for keeping proper records and for

- safeguarding BPDTS assets, are set out in Managing Public Money, published by HM Treasury.

I confirm that this annual report and accounts 2020/21 is, as a whole, fair, balanced and easy to :
understand. I take personal responsibility for the annual report and accounts and the judgements required
for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable. '

/._‘a-ﬁ-

Richard McHugh
Chief Executive and Accountmg Officer .

13 October 2021
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' The Board set up a Remuneration, Commlttee to plon the poy strotegy for BPDTS. The BPDTS pcy strategy is -
implemented within an annual pay remit, signed off by the Accountlng Officer, approved by the Secretory of

State and agreed by the Treosury

Remuneration of Directors

The Board is appointed by the Secretory of Stote for Work and Pensions. All Executlve Directors.in the
reporting period were senior civil servants whose remuneration, like that of other senior civil servants, is

- set by the Prime Minister following. |ndependent odwce from the Senior Solaries Rewew Body Details are

available on www.gov.uk

Richard McHugh (CEO) was' oppomted on 31 December 2020. The CEO sclory is paid by BPDTS Ltd as port of
their employment.

Loveday Ryder (former‘CEO) was appointed on secondment to BPDTS ond was a civil servant employe‘d by -
_the Ministry of Justice. The solory for Loveday Ryder was chcrged at 100% to BPDTS Ltd.

Mal Singh (CFO) is a civil servant employed by DWP, oppomted on secondment to BPDTS. All of Mal Slngh S,
- salary is rechorged by DWP to BPDTS

The dotes of appointment ond contract lengths of the Directors are grven in the Directors’ Report above.

Executlve Directors’ pay

This information was subject to audit

Directors’ remuneration

202021 . o .- 2019/20
| 5 | 5.
v ~ — (%] ~ 4
> wE S - ‘> t S - ®
g 85 8% I 5 g3 3% Es
® o c 2 o £ w c E c' g o c
n oz & o =3 ¥ o 3 S5 = 3
o [+} g o o 5
< A x©
_ £000 . £000 . £00b £000. £000 £000 £000  £000
Richard McHugh' . 2530 - . 2 30-35 A A
Chief Executive - (FYE . - (FYE (FYE - - - -
(appointed 31 Dec 20) 110-115) - : ©.10)° - 115-120) C ~
MolSingh2 o R Coe S : S
N : - - 7 -14 - - -110.
 Chief Financiol Officer 209 5-10 | 3 135140 8085 = . .22 105110
" Loveday Ryder 3 80-85 . ©125-130 i :
Chief Executive ’ (FYE 5-10 . . 33 (FYE - 105-110 5-10 .45 ° 160-165
(Resigned 31 Dec20) . "110-115) . 150-155) : ’

The salaries stoted'obove are shown for the period in the year when an individual served as Director for
' BPDTS Ltd, plus what their full year equwolent would have been. - .

1 Richard McHugh S solcry is paid by BPDTS as part thIS employment. Dunng the period 1 Dec 20 - 31 Dec
20 Richard McHugh was remunerated at a rate equivalent to that of a CEO whilst in a shadowing position
oheod of his opporntment The increase for December 2020 was £1 78 :
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" 2The cost of Mal Singh’s salary is charged out by Department:for Work and Pensions to BPDTS on an average

salary basis. This includes gross solary, National Insurance, pensuon contributions and an additional 5%
uplift for associated overheads. .

" 3Loveday Ryder’s salary was chofged out by Ministry of Justice to BPDTS Ltd on a 100% rechorge bOSIS

including gross salary, National Insurance and pension costs.

“The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is colculoted as (the real increase in pensnon :
multiplied by 20) plus (the real increase in any lump sum) less (the contributions made by the individual).
The real increases exclude increases due to mﬂotuon or ony increase or decreases due to a transfer of
pension rights. :

" SFor Richard McHugh the value is pension contributions rather t'h'on pension beneﬂt.

C ‘Sularies include: -

« gross salary
- reserved rights to London weighting or London ollowonces

K cny other allowances and contracted expenses to the extent that they are subject to UK taxation

Executlve Directors’ pensions -

This information was subject to audit -

Directors’ pensions - year ended 31 March 2021 .

Accrued i
. . . . Realincrease -
Realincrease _pension at : . CETV in CETV Employer
In pension pensionage-  CETVat at 31 (cash " contribution
andrelated- - asat 31March 1April March equivalent to pension
lumpsumat - 2021and- 2020 . : :
pension age related lump 2021 transfer value) account
’ ' _sum i
£000 £000 £000  £000 ~ - £000 ' £000
Loveddy Ryder o ' ' ‘ oo
Chief Executive = 0-25 30-35 415 452 . 18 , Co-
(resigned 31 Dec 20)- : ' SRR '
"‘Mal Singh - - 0-25plusa 40- 45 plus a ‘ . : : '
Chief Financial Officer  lump sum of  lump sum of 924 1003 39 -
. 5-75 - 125-130 . ‘ : . ‘
" Richard McHugh o ; :
Chief Executive .- ‘ - - - .2

(appointed 31 Dec 20)

Directors’ pensions - year ended 31st March 2020

. . Accrued pension ' . . Realincrease
Realincrease .. : : .
in pension and a;:Eear;s;c;r;1 © CETVat - CETVat . ln(((::aEJ‘V
SL?;a:fdé::;gn ~March2020and 1;:;:';‘ , 31;3;3:." equivalent
p related lump ) ) - transfervalue)
age sum S o
£000 © €000 . £000 . £000 £000
Loveday Ryder 255 . 25.30 368 415" 24
Chief Executive : , s
Mal Singh 0-2.5plusa 35-40plus a ‘
Chief Financial Officer lump sumof  lumpsumof . 854 . 924 - 22
) 2.5-5 115-120 : ’ ' ’ i

Loveday Ryder and Mal Singh are Civil Servants and:are members of the Civil Service Pension Scheme.
Richard McHugh is an employee of BPDTS Ltd and is @ member of the Aviva pension scheme, which is a
defined contribution workplace pension scheme.
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Non Executive Directors’ puy

Non-executive Dlrectors are solcmed only and do not. recelve 0 pen5|on beneft This mformotnon was subJect
to audit : - : : : :

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration and pension arrangements - 2020/21

Satary .
£000
lan Wllson ‘0_5 .
Non- Executlve Dlrector - .
Valerie Gordon-Walker : 0_'5 :
Non-Executive Director . ,
. Jeremy Moore I : T 104s
Cha|r & Non- Executlve Dnrector i -
Jehn Osmond 0-5
- Non-Executive Director '
Katie Kapernaros - 0-5

Non-Executive Director

Independent Voting Members remuneration and pension arrangements - 2020/21

.Salary
© £000

. Paul Greenmg .
Independent Member ARAC

Debbie Alder -
Independent Member RemCom

0-5

Solory pord by Deportment for Work and Pen5|ons
as part of their employment

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration and pension arrangements -~ 2019/20

- Salary

. £000
Ian Wilson , S _ e
Non-Executive Director o ‘ v 0-5

(appointed 1.Jun 2018)

Valerie Gordon-Walker . , . .
Non-Executive Director . o . o - 0-5
(appointed 1 Jdn 2019) . SR

Jeremy Moore - ’ o ' "
" Chair & Non- Executlve Dlrector' : : .~ 5-10
(appointed T Jan 201_9) . : . L

- John Osmond . S
Non-Executive Director. o - . 05
(appointed 1 Feb 2019) ’ T ' .

.Katie Kopernoros : . :
Non-Executive Director ' . B 0-5
(appointed 1-Feb 2019) - : ' : - :
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Independent Voting Members remuneration and pension arrangements — 2019/20

Salary
£000
Paul Greening - ) .
Independent Member ARAC o o g 0-5
'(oppomted 8 Jan 2020) ' . : A o
Debbie Alder ~ Salary paid by Deportment for Work and Pen5|ons :

Independent Member RemCom

- (appointed.1 Apm2019) as part of thelr employment

The actual solory p0|d in year ond full -year equuvolent are contolned within the same bondlng

All Non-Executive Dlrectors performing duties for BPDTS as part of thelr employment for Department for
Work and Pensions and Government Legal Departmient were members of the Civil Service pension scheme
with the respectlve employers No Non-Executive Directors have access to theBPDTSA pension scheme.
Remuneration of employees

Remuneration of employees is set by the Board on the odwce of the Remuneration Committee:

- Fair pay disclosure

" This information was subject to oud|t

: Reportlng bodies are requwed to d|sclose the relotlonshlp between the remunerotlon of the highest paid
‘Director in their orgomsotlon and the median remuneration of the orgonlsotlon s workforce.

Pay band of hlghest paid ,

7

2020/21 ‘ £110 OOO £115, OOO £45 500 - o 2471

2019/20° £115,000 - £120,000 . £43,448 IR 2.70:1

3 op——

The total-pay band for our highést-paid Director in 2020/21 was £110,000-£115,000 (2019/20 £115-120k)

per annum (full year equivalent). This was 2.47:1 times (2019/20 - 2.70:1) the median pay of the workforce,
which was £45,500 (2019/20: £43,448). The ratio has reduced sl|ghtly in 2020/21 to that of the prior year
due to change W|th|n the board ofdlrectors

In 2020/21 no permonent member of staff was pGId more than our highest-paid director, as was the case
in 2019/20. BPDTS does not have “pay bands”. Salary rates ranged from £15,000-£20,000 to £110, 000-
£115,000 (2019/20 £15,000-£20,000 to'£115,000-£120 OOO)

~In 2020/21 seven agency workers were paid at annualised rates that were in excess of the pay of our

highest paid director. Remuneration ranged from £119k to £178k per annum (2019/20 - ten agency
workers in the range of £1 20k to £187k):

Total pay mcludes salary, non- consohdoted performonce reloted bonus payments and benefits in kind: It .
does not include severance poyments employer pension contributions and the cosh équivalent transfer

volue of pensions.

Stuff costs

' Staff costs in the year ending 31 March ,2021 and 2020 are as follows:.
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Item ‘ 31 March 2021 "~ 31 March 2020 .
‘ £000 £000

Wages and sulorles ' ' .. 51014 . - - 45,930
Controctors . _ - 6,853 E DR 7,922
" Social security costs. T A 5,553 Ny 4,975
Pension costs_ _ ' N 3901, - ' o 3,485
Direlctors' salary ' ' _ 281 5 ’ ' 290

 Total staff costs - el - 62,602

Directors’ salary also includes a 5% overhead chdrge levied by DWP for Directors on secondment. Directors’
salary are for executive directors only, non-executive director salaries are included in wages and salaries.

4. 'Consultuncy costs
. Expenditure on consultoncy in 2020/21 was £126k (2019/20 £82k)

Pension costs

BPDTS makes contributions to its own BPDTS workplace 'pension scheme. For 2020/21, employer
contributions of £3,295k (2019/20 - £2,883k). were payable to.the BPDTS workploce pension scheme.

.Employer contributions pdyable to the CSPA under the 2013 New Fair Deal pollcy for 2020/21 were £606k
(2019/20 £602k). :

Civil service and other compensatron schemes - exit puckoges

There were no cnwl service and other compensation schemes exit pockoges agreed by BPDTS duringthé -

- reporting period ended 31 March 2021 (prior period ending 31 March 2020 - no exit packages in year).

Pension schemes
Aviva pensmn scheme
Most BPDTS employees are members of a defined contnbutlon workploce pension scheme set up by BPDTS

and operated by Aviva under a Master Trust. BPDTS meets its obligations under automatic enrolment
legislation and prowdes a generous employer contribution for employees joining the Aviva scheme

Under the Aviva scheme, employee ond employer contrlbutlons asa percentoge of salary are as follows :

J..
WE;:ployee contrll:ur.ron | ? A Employev;contribution
3%_ T - 6%
4% S - 8%
5% .- o o o 10%
Over 5% S o | T 10%

Civil Service Pension Schemes

" Some employees of BPDTS ond all civil servonts seconded to BPDTS are members of the civil service pension
‘schemes.

FromT April 2015 anew pension scheme for civil servants was introduced - the Ciyil Servants and Others
Pension Scherne, or ‘Alpha’, which provides benefits on a career average basis with a normal pension age -
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equal to the member’s State Pension Age (or 65 if higher). From 2015 all newly appointed civil servants
and the majority of those already in service joined Alpha. Before that date, civil servants portlapoted in the
Pnnapoi Civil Service Pen5|on Scheme (PCSPS)

The PCSPS hos 4 sectlons 3 provudlng benefits on a final salary basis (Clossic: Premium or Classic Plus) with

- a normal pension age of 60; and one providing benefits on a whole career basis (Nuvos) with a normal
_ pension age of 65. These statutory arrangements are unfunded with the cost of benefits met by monies

voted by Parliament each year. Pensions payable under Classic, Premium, Classic Plus, Nuvos-and Alpha
are increased annually in line with Pensions Increase legislation. Existing members of the PCSPS who were
within 10 years of theéir normal pension age on 1 April 2012 remained in the PCSPS after 1 April 2015. Those
who were between 10 years and 13 years and 5 months from their normal pension age on 1 Aprll 2012 will
SW|tch into Alpha sometime between 1 June 2015 and 1 February 2022.

All members who switch to Alpho hove their PCSPS benefits ‘banked’, with those with earlier benefits in orie
of the final salary sections of the RCSPS having those benefits based on their final satary when they leave

_ Alpha. (The pension figures quoted for officials show pension earned in PCSPS or Alpha - as appropriate.

Where the official has benefits in both the PCSPS and Alpha the figure quoted is the combined value of
their benefits in the two schemes.) Members joining from October 2002 could opt for either the appropriate
defined benefit arrangement or @ ‘money purchose stakeholder pension with an employer contnbutlon 4
(partnership pen5|on occount) .

Employee contributions are salary-related ond range between 3 8% and 8.05% of pensionable earnings
for members of Classic (and members of Alpha who were members of classic immediately before joining
Alpha) and between 4.6% and 8.05% for members of Premium, Classic Plus, Nuvos and all other members
of Alpha. Benefits.in Classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th of final pensionable earnings for each year of

_service. In addition,.a lump sum equivalent to three years’ initial pension is payable on retirement.

For Premium, benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings for each year of service.

Unlike classic, there is no automatic lump sum. Classic Plus is essentially o hybrid with benefits for service _
before 1 October 2002 colculoted broodly as per Classic and beneﬂts for service from October 2002 worked |

‘out as in Premium.

In'Nuvos, a member builds up a'pension bosed on his or her pensmnoble earnings dunng their period of
scheme membership. At the end of the scheme year (31 March) the member’s earned pension account is
credited with 2.3% of their pensionable earnings in that scheme year and the accrued pension is uprated in

‘line with Pensions Increase legislation. Benefits in Alpha buildup in a similar way to Nuvos, except that the

accrual rate is 2.32%. In all cases members may opt to give up (commute) pension for a lump sum."

- The Port’nership pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement. The enﬁployer makes a basic

contribution of between 8% dnd 14.75% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakeholder pension -
product chosen by the employee from a panel of providers. The employee does not have to contribute, but
where they do make contributions, the employer will match these up to a limit of 3% of pensionable salary

. (in addition to the employer’s basic-contribution). Employers also-contribute a further 0.5% of pensionable

salary to cover the cost of centrolly_-provideo risk benefit’ cover (death in service and ill health retirement).

Staff data

The average number of people employed ond engaged (or contracted) during the period of economlc
oct|v1ty was as follows:

This mformotlon hos been subJect to audit.

Period ended 31 Averoge number of people 1004
March 2021 employed and engaged

_Period ended 31 Average number of people

March 2020 employed and engaged 928 82 : 1010(

v
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Staff composition and policies

- As headcount levelled off and recruitment stopped in advance of the transfer to DWP, our focus has been

* on streamlining our employee policies. Our polices were re-drafted and so became easier to-understand by -
both'-managers and staff. We reduced the number of our policies ond issued rewsed guidance that was both ’
pragmatic and easy to dlgest

_ Male Female All Male Female - All

Directors . . .6 A R 2 - T 5 37 8
: Secon'de_esA 4 .5 -9 5 8 13
All employees 748 165 913 757 183 940

Data as at 31 March 2021. The prior year table’(2019/20) did not previously recognise secondees-from
other government departments, this has been re-stated to ensure conistency. , ‘ :

Off-payroll engagements

The tables below set out the off-payroll arrangements in BPDTS for the reporting period. Following a change
to the Intermediaries leglslotlon on 6 April 2017, BPDTS now undertake assessments for-all off- poyroll
~ workers thot are. engoged vuo an mtermedlory ’ :

Table 1:

All existing off-payroll engagements, as at 31 March 2021, that were paid more than | ° 2020/21
£245 per day and that lasted longer than 6 months

No. of existing erjg'agements as of 31 Merch 2020 A : ' | ~ | 26
Of which | | '
No. that have existed for less than, one year at time of féporting. R 8
No. that have existed for between one end tWQ yeors at time of reperting. o : - 10
_No. that-have existed' for between _fwo and three years at time of reporting. o i 1
No. thdt ho;e—existed fo_r.b‘etween‘ three and fo_ur'yeo'rs at time of reperting. . 2
. No. that have existed for foufor more years dt time of.feporting. ‘ . s

Table 2:
For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration,

between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, for more than £245 per.day and that last 2020721

for longer than six months

No. of new engagements or those that reached six months between 1 April 2020 cnnd 57
31 March 2021 : .

Of which "

'No. assessed as cd’ught'by IR35 : ‘ - 51
No: assessed as not caught by IR35. ’ A . 4
No. engaged directly. (via PSC contracted to deportment) and ore on the departmental 5

' poyroll
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. No. of engagements reassessed for _consistency/ossuronce purposes during the year. ' 2

No. of engagements thot saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency review 0

« IR35 leglslotlon from 6 Apnl 2017 requnred publlc sector bodles where they engage off—poyroll workers,
to ensure they correctly assess their “employment status” i.e. correct tax treatment

To do this, BPDTS utilised HMRC's CEST (Check Employment Status Tool)

- . In May 2021 BPDTS received a Letter of Offer from HMRC that formally conc[uded their review of IR35
“implementation in BPDTS .

. The result was agreement on historic errors and accéptance by BPDTS of a l|ob|l|ty for mlss:ng tax/NI plus

interest for the financial years 2017-18 (£3.0 mnlhon) 2018-19 (£2.9 million) and 2019-20 (£1.0 million) .

The total amounted to £6.9 million. This amount has been recorded as a fruitless poyment in line with
Managing Public Money in the 2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts (see also note 20)

Table 3:
For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with
significant financial responsibility, between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021

2020/21

No. of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with
sngnlﬂcont financial responsibility, during the financial year:

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been deemed-“board
members and/of senior officials with significant financial responsibility”, during
the financial year. This figure should include both on payroll and off—poyroll '
engagements.. :

Sickness data

Our data'is based on an overoge of 935 employees over the 12- month penod from 1 Apnl 2020 to 31 Morch} o
12021 (928 stoff from 1 April 2019 to 31 Morch 2020).

For the perlod below our doto on sickness shows the followung

Worklng days Days lost to Averoge Workmg Days Lost (annual
snckness equwalent)

. Year ended 31

March 2021 238425 n 2,416
Year ended 31 ' u',' ' : R _
March 2020 237,568 3, 581 _ 3.86

The fall in the number of days’ sickness this year, by 1165 doys reﬂects our focus on managing absence -
and supporting colleogues

" @ the number of working days has been. re-stoted for the yeoi' ending 31 Morch 2020 (redocing the o

‘previously stated number by 3,857 days). To ensure consistency for both years, the number of working
days stated above is the number of days in the year, minus bank holidays and weekends, multiplied by
- the overoge number of employees:

Staff T urnover

BPOTS Ltd opplles the Cobtnet Office guudonce on stoff turnover to calculate the rote of turnover wuthtn the

~ company.
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For a given period, the turnover figure is calculated ds the number of leavers within that period divided
. by the average number of staff in post over the period. Leavers include all leavers within the financial year

and the average number of staff i in post is calculated using quorterly staff in post data for the respectrve o

financial year.

| Staff Turnover

2020121 2019/20

Staff turnover (percentage) ' 9.7% . 15.3%

Drversrty and inclusion

Also see Employment and Inclusivity sectlon

Our gender pay gap coverrng the 12 months up to the 31 March 2021 shows the mean gender pay gop is
at 5.4%, this is significantly smaller compared to many other digital and technology companies. This year’s
fgure shows a small decrease in the-gender pay gap for ordinary pay since last year; down slightly from
6.0% (reported in our 2019/20.accounts as 5.5% and subsequently revised in our Gender Pay- Gap report to
6%). Our median gender pay gap is 1.1%, an decrease of just under 1% compared to the previous year.

Our headcount at year end decredsed by 4.7% over the year; 96 people left and 62 people joined inthe
year. In the context of significant turnover and high recruitment, the changes in our mean and median.
gender pay gaps are not significant. As BPDTS is a relatively new organisation, the salaries given to '
advertised roles have always been based on the market pay ddta, which does not have the inherent gender
' pay gap associated with more mature organisations. This success of this is reflected in both our recent
recurtment drives and the limited impact that is shows i in.our year on year turnover.

We invested, not only in creating professronal communities for our people but also by further reinforcing the
_behaviours and values we wonted to see and encouroge

‘ Workrng within the drgrtol and technology arena, we were aware of the challenges the sector faces in
increasing the number of female employees to rebalance the industry’s male dominance. We established
and supported a ‘Women in Digital Network’. Its aims are to encourage more women to consrder careers.in
" the mdustry and celebrote the female role models we have within our company.

Disability Inclusnon

"The BPDTS Dlversrty & Inclusion Strategy focused on building an inclusive ond diverse organisation and
creating an environmerit in.which people can be authentic at work. The strategy aims were to deliver on
three key areas ofSupportrng our People Creating our Envrronment ond Attracting and retaining diverse
talent.

BPDTS had Disability Confident Employer status. Workplace Adjustment & Carer Passports were available
for employees with disabilities or for those in carer roles. A Stress Policy was created with an accompanying
stress assessment and stress management plan. A guide to Neurodiversity in the workplace for Managers
was created to assist in the understanding of neurodiverse conditions and to support managers with
enabling reasonable adjustments for their staff to run alongside existing HR policies. .

A disability staff network was created to provide a community for those with disabilities and allies and
this-network worked closely with the DWP Disability network and Thrive, to provide cross government

~collaboration and resources and members of BPDTS were able to join the DWP network.

Richard McHugh

Chief Executive and Accountlng Ofﬁcer
13 October.2021
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‘Auditor’s Report

The report of the Comptroller and Auditor General to the Members of BPDTS Ltd

. Opinion on financial statements

I have audited the financial. statements of BPDTS Ltd for the yedr ended 31 March 2021 under the
Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000. The financial stotements comprise the Statement of -

. Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of

Changes in'Equity and the related notes, including the significant accounting policies. The financial reporting .

-framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Accounting

Standards in conformlty with the requnrements of the Componles Act 2006.

- I have also audited the |nformot|on in the Remunerotlon and Staff Report that is descrlbed in that report as

having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

+ . give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of the net
operating income for the year then ended; :

~ + " have been properly prepored in accordance with |ntern0t|onol dccountmg stondords in conformity with .

the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and;

.. hove been prepared in occordonce with the Companies Act 2006

' Oplmon on regularity

In my opinion, in all material respects, the income and expenditure recorded in the financial stdtements
have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial tronsactuons recorded in the
financial statements conform to the authorities which govern them

BOSIS of opinions

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Stondords on Auditing (ISAs) (UK), applicable law
and Practice Note 10 ‘Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom’. My _
responsibilities under those standards are further descnbed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of my report. :

" Those standards requrre me and my s_tcrff‘to.comply'with the Financial Reporting Council’s Revised
" Ethical Standard 2019. I have also elected to apply the ethical standards relevant to listed entities. I am

independent of BPDTS Ltd in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
financial statements,in the UK. My staff and I hove fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance -
wrth these requirements. :

- I believe-that the audit evidence I have obtained i is sufficient and oppropnote to provide a basis for my

op|n|on

Modified conclusions on going concern

" In oudutlng the financial statements, I have concluded that BPDTS Ltd s use of a basis other than going

concern in the preparation of the ’r“nonool statements is appropriate.

My evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the entity’s basis of accounts preparation as being a

basis other than going concern, included reference to the outcome of the taitored review announced in
September 2020, as a result of. Wthh BPDTS's staff and all assets and liabilities transferred into DWP from 1
July 2021, as set out in Note 1.5 and Note 15. :
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Based on the work I have performed, [ have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast signiﬁcont doubt on monogement’s dssessment.

My responsrbllltles and the responsubllrtres ofthe Accounting Officer with respect to gomg concern are
descrlbed in the relevant SECtIOﬂS of this report. .

Othe‘r Information

The other information comprises information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the parts
of the of the Remuneration and Staff Report described in that report as having been audited, the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information:.

"My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, .
in doing so, consider whether the other rnformotlon is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If T identify such
‘material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If; based on the work I have
performed, I conclude that thereis a moterrol mrsstotement of this other mformotlon [am requrred to
report that fact. ' : :

[ have nothih’g to report.in this regard.
0p’ihion on other matters prescribed by the'Companies Act 2006

In my op|n|on based on the work undertoken in-the course of the oudrt

« the ports of the Remunerotlon and Stoff Report to be oudlted hove been properly prepored in occordonce
with the Government Financial Reporting Manual; :

+ the information given in the Strotegrc and Directors’ Report for the ﬂnoncrol year for which the ﬁnoncrol
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report ond the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with oppllcoble legol
requirements. .

Matters on which I report by exception '
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of BPDTS Ltd and its ehvirohr_nent obtained in the course of
the audit, I have not identified material misstatéements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires me to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate occountlng records have not been kept or returns odequote for my audit have not been
© received from branches not visited by my staff; or

+ the financial statements and the parts of the Directors’ Remunerotlon Report to be audited are not in
ogreement with the accounting records and returns; or : :

. certom disclosures of director’s remuneration’ specrﬁed by law-are not made; or
- a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the poreht company; or

» ‘Thavenot recelved all of the information and explanations I requlre for my oudlt

Responsnbllltles of the directors and accountmg officer for the financial statements

-As explained more fully i in the Statement of Directors’ and Accountlng Officer’s ResponS|b|lltles the directors
and accounting ofﬂcer are responsible for:

- the preparation of the financial statements and for beihg satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

"+ such internal control as management determinies is necessary to enable the preparation of Fnoncrol
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and,

. ossessrng the compony ] obrlrty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as oppllcoble matters reloted
to going concern and using the going concern Basis of accounting unless the Board and the Accounting
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Officer int‘ends to liquidate the entity or to cease operotiens or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

. Auditor’s responsnbllltles for the audit of the financial statements

My responsublllty is to audit and report on the financial statements in occordonce with the Government

Resources and Accounts Act 2000.

" My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are -

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in a¢cordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

" can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decusmns of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.. .

[ design procedures in line with my responsnbllltles outlined above, to detect material mlsstatements in
respect of non- compllonce with lows and regulotlon including fraud:

My proceduresmcluded the followmg.

Ent:luiring of management, BPDTS Ltd’s head of internal audit and those charged with governance,
- including obtaining and reviewing supportlng documentation relating to BPDTS Ltd’s policies and
procedures relating to: <

- identifying, evoluotlng and complying with laws and regulotlons and Whether they were aware of
any instances of non-compliance; :

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, ’
suspected or alleged fraud; and

+  theinternal controls estdblished to mitigate rlsks reloted to fraud or non- compllonce with laws and
requlations including BPDTS Ltd’s controls relating to the Government Resources and Accounts Act ZOOO
Managing Public Money and the Companies Act 2006

- discussing among the engagement team, regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, I identified potential for v
fraud in the following areas: revenue recognltlon postmg of unusuoljournols and bias in management’s
estimates . o . :

. obtcining an understonding of BPDTS Ltd's framework of outhority as well as other legal and regulatory
frameworks that BPDTS Ltd operates in, focusing on those laws and regulations that had a direct effect
on the financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on the operations of BPDTS Ltd. The key
laws and regulations I considered in this context included the Government Resources and Accounts Act
2000, Managing Public Money, the Companies Act 2006, employment law and tax legislation

In addition to the above, my procedures to respond to identified risks included the following:

. revieWing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compllonce with relevant laws and regulations discussed obove

+ enquiring of management and the Audit Commlttee concernlng octual and potentlol l|t|gct|on and
claims;

+ reading mingtes of meetings of those charged with gove‘rnance and t_he Board;

“+ in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of-

journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and évaluating the business rationale of any 5|gn|ﬂcant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business; and,

- reviewingBPDTS Ltd’s compliance with IR35 tax legislation and their associated lloblllty and assessing
comphonce with HM Treasury’s pay remit approval processes

I also communlcoted relevont identified laws and regulations ond potentlol fraud nsks to all engagement
team-members and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non- compliance with laws cnd regulotlons
throughout the audit.
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" A further description of my responsnbllltues for the oudnt of the financial statements is located on the .
..Financial Reporting Council’s webS|te at: www.frc, org uk/oudltorsresgon5|b|l|t|e This descnptlon forms port
.of my report. .

In oddntlon [am requwed to-obtain ewdénce sufficient to give reosonoble o‘ssuronce‘t‘hot the income and
" expenditure reported in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes mtended by Porhoment
- and the financial tronsoctuons conform to the authorities which govern them ‘ :

'Lcommunicate with those chcrged with governance regardlng, among other matters, the planned scope.
and timing of the audit and significant dudit findings, including any sngnlﬂcont deficiencies in mternol

- control that I |dent|fy durlng my audit. -

Gareth Davies
Comptroller and Auditor Generol

18 October 2021

National Audlt Office
157-197 Buckingham Palace Rood
" Victoria .

+ London

" SWIW 95P
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Statement of Comprehensive Income : :

*f(i)r‘th.e year ended 31 Mdrch 2021

yearend " year end

Note 31 March2021 31 March'2020
) . .  £000 £000
Operating ihcome. P . . o 82,576 = 73,54§ -
Ope(afing expenditure : .
Sffcosts - - 2 7602 . (6260
IT support dndgervice costs . .3 ‘ | (20790 . - (2,437)
Non IT support‘servi‘ces o - , 4 : S (3839) (3,963)
‘Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 8&9 - . 51 - - -
Other expenditure - s E : c.5 7 .~ (9,07.1) = 7 (4,244)
. Total ope‘rating._expendi'ture ' o » e (82;54(1-) o (73,246)
Cbrporotion Tax . . 7 ; (36)' L “(3—%7'

Net operating income : _ S . o ‘ .

Other comprehensive income - R : - -

-

Net gain on revaluation ofintdngible assets - 9 S - ‘ -

Total.comprehensive income for ihé year end 31 4 '_
March 2021 - .

VThAe r)otés on pages 58-69 form part of these financial statements.

54



Findnée I:I O I:I t K

Statement of Financial Position

for thé year ended 31 March 2021

~ year end - year end

Note . - 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
: £000 £000
‘ an-current assets { '
Pfoperty, plant dnd equipment - e
_ Int,on'gible assets - o . N .9‘ o ' - ' o
' Totdl'nén-,currgnt 6ssefs _ . o S S ) o - ' -
‘Current assets a o L - 4 . L ' o
Tfode qn-d other recgivobles‘. . o ‘ 10 . . , 14,949 - - : 8,185_
Cdjsh and c'oshvequivolents o - :  11 . S 11951 - 10,208
Total current assets . _ o o o I 26,.90"0 .. 18,393
Totalassets . 2690 18,393
._(Zurrent liabilfti_es 4 R ' - ' ' | ‘ )
‘Trade and other payables . 12 C16%00) (8,342)
DWPloan. S N 13 (100000  ° (10,000)
Total current libilities _"‘ S ~ (26,900) . (18,342)
Totol assets less current luabllltles E
;\lt)n cur_rent liabilities ‘ ‘ : o - - —* -
DWPloan - - R & A - ' S
. Total non-current liabilities T ’ ‘
" Total assets less total liabilities L ) IR
Equity |
Revaluation Reserve LT -  : S
s Género.l Re.serve" , S - o ' L , - L 1 nE
Totalequify o o e - 51

» As the Compony is limited by guorontee it hos no shore cop|tol

The notes on pages 58-69 form part of these financial stotements These finahcial statements were opproved
.and cuthorlsed forissue by the Boord of Directors on 13 October 2021, ond were sugned on its behalf by

. Rich McHugh :
" Chief Executive dnd Accountmg Ofﬂcer

.13 October2021
Company registered number: 10344843
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the'year ended 31 March 2021

year end

- yearend
Note - 31 March 2021 - 31 March 2020
| | £000 ‘ £000

Cash flows from_operating aétivities' .

Net operating income o L B - -
Adjustments for: : |

Depreciation L R ' , . 8 . ' - _
Amortisation R 9 | 5D -
'Impoi‘rments o R - 8 _ S - _ -
(Decreose)/i_ncreqse.provisibn ' ' 14 _ | — -
Use of provisions = ' U ©(553)
| kl'htreose)/decre'osé jn trdd’e and other receivqbles; 10 (6,764.)' 5,055

(Decrease)/increase ih trade and other payables ‘ 12 ' . ] | 8,558 (2,218)
Net cash inﬂoW/(outﬂow) from operating activities- e ‘ S v . 1,743 2,284
Cash flows frqm investing act‘ivities | | o

Purchasg of prbperty, blont and equiprhe'nt' o -_ 8 - = -
' purchase of intongible assets R 9 o S -
Receipt of shareholder loan _ : ©13 B - :
‘Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities " R R -
Cash flows from ﬁnancihg activities

Net cash inﬂoWI(outﬂo‘w) from f'mancibn'g'octiVitfes' L - . - -

" Net increase/(decrease) in ¢ash in the .period ' L i - 1,743 2,284

- Cash at the beginning o'f,the'p-eriod o o . 10,208 7,924
Cash at the end of the péri’pd - o 11,951

10,208

The notes on'pages 58-69 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2021

General - - Revaluation ,' - :
. Reserve = . Reserve ' zggg‘
£000 £000

~ Balance at beginning of year o o T - 51 . o 51

Net-operating income;fo&h’éyeor o S :—-_ B -._ : -
~ Net gain on revaluation o.f'i‘ntongible assets R . - o - ’ IR

Disposal of revaluation of fntcngiblé assets L - . (51) (51)

" Balance at end ofyédr : . ’ - - - _ S

. for the year ended 3<i_Mdrch 2020 .

Balance at beginning ofye.or“.' o ' ' - | L 51 i .51A

. Net pperoting income for the year ' K o - o - o » -

'Net.‘édin oﬁ revoluotioh of intangible assets R - - - R o .

Balance at end of year . IR T - - .51 : 51

As the Company is limited by gu,qrdntee, it has no share capital.
The notes on pages 58-69 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Accounts

Note' 1: Stdte'meht of accounting policies

11 General Information

~ BPDTS Limited (“BPDTS” or “the Company”) is a company thot is llmlted by guorantee and is mcorporoted

and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The Company is registered in England at the following address:
Caxton House, Tothill Street, London, United Kingdom, SW1H 9NA. o

' The Cbmpany is wholly owned by the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions. The Company’s principal

activities are the provision of information technology and IT security services to.the Deportment for Work
and Pensions (DWP). _

BPDTS was incorporated on 24 August 2016 ond commenced trodmg on 1 December 2016 The penod
covered by these accounts is 1 April 2020 to 31 Morch 2021.

\

1.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterllng and all values are rounded to the nearest

. thousand pounds (£'000) except when otherwuse indicated.

The financial statements hove.been prepored in accordance with the Componieé Act 2006 ond International

. Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and, as appropriate, the 2020/21

Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and any other guidance issued by HM Treasury, where these -

~ disclosure requnrements go beyond those of the Companies Act 2006.

Where IFRS permits a choice of accounting policy, the Compdny has selected the accounting policy that
is the most appropriate to provide a true and fair view. The policies the Company has adopted are set
out below. They have been con5|stently applied in deollng with items that are con5|dered material-to the

' occounts

1.3 Accouﬁting stdndards interpretotiens and amendments

IFRS 16 was effective for annual reportlng periods beginning'on or after 1 January 2019. It introduces a

srngle lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a

~ term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

58

' The new standard amends the accounting for lessees, removing the distinction. between recognising an

operating lease (off balance sheet) and a finance lease (on bolonce sheet). The new stondord requnres
recognition of oll quollfylng leases on bolonce sheet

The directors hove ossessed thot the mtroductnon of this standard does not have a mdtenol impact on
the financial statements of the Company for 2020/21. The Company has reviewed its contracts to identify

. any that may contain a lease orrongement The estates agreement with the DWP does not fall within the -

definition of a ledse for IFRS 16 purposes and the IT agreement with the DWP i is deemed to foll under the
exemption for leases of low-value underlylng assets.

‘A1 & Accountmg conventlon '

These financial statements have been prepdred onan occruols basis under the hlstorlcol cost convermon
modified to account for the revoluotlon of property, plant and equ1pment and mtonglble assets.
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‘ 1 5 Gomg Concern

Following the publlcotlon of the Tailored Review report and recommendcmons of BPDTS Ltd on 29th
" September 2020, BPDTS will cease trading on 30th June 2021 and d'single, digital function within DWP will
- be created. The financial statements have therefore been prepared on a basis other than that of a going
concern. Further detail of the basis for preparation of the financial statements is detailed in note 15

1.6 Areas of judgement and estimation techniques

The preparation-of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requnres management to mokeJudgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
‘assets and ligbilities, income and expenditure. Actual results may differ from those estimates: Areas of
judgement include non-current asset revaluations, depreciation ond omortlsotlon periods, provisions ond

' |mp0|rments

The company SJudgements in lnterpretlng IFRS 16 requirements in relation to estates and IT costs could
be-considered to be significant for 2020/21 and have therefore been considered as a separate S|gn|Fc0nt
judgement, due to the fact thevalues are material. Further detail of the dlrector s assessment in relation to
IFRS 16 is detailed in note 1.3.

1.7 Revenue Recognltlon (Income)

From 1 April 2018 we adopted IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts W|th Customers). There. hos been no |mpoct”

on our ﬁnoncuol stotements 0sa result of adoption.

Allincome generated is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an occruols bOSIS net of
VAT. The impact of IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts, which has been assessed. ogcunst the 5 step model, is-
outllned below:

The Master Services Agreement (MSA) is the contract between the compony and its primary customer, DWP.
The agreement meets the cnteno llsted in the Standard and is an agreement that creates enforceable rights
and obligations.

BPDTS Ltd deliver a series of IT Services to DWP under the Master Services Agreement (MSA) thro‘ugh the use
of Service Orders. These Service Orders form the performance obligations under IFRS 15. The services are
provided to DWP at full cost recovery including-overheads, and all income received from DWP is allocated
centrally under the terms of the-Master Services Agreement (MSA).

DWP simultaneously receives ond.consumes the IT services provided by the company as it performs. The
satisfaction of the performance obligations is mainly measured via analysis of the labour hours consumed
in their delivery. The company satisfies the performance obligdtions while.the control of the services
remains with DWP. Therefore, there is no change in the recognition of income from prlor years under IFRS.
15

Invoices for services are rolsed monthly in arrears, providing detoﬂed mcnagement mformotlon on the

IT sefvices delivered. DWP pays the invoice within 15 working days from receipt of the invoice. Where the
_invoice has-not been raised but service has.been provided by the year end, an estimated charge will be
Jincluded as accrued income. The company invoices DWP through-a ratecard that is designed to fully recover

all BPDTS operating costs including overheads. They do impact the Stotement of Financial Position as

receivables, if there are any outstondlng amounts at the year end. '

- 1. 8 Property, plant and equupment

- Property, plont and equment (PPE) are initially measured ct cost. Subsequently PPE are stoted at
depreciated historical cost as a proxy for fair value. Where motenol the Compony re- volues PPE in
accordance with IAS 16.

’
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. Assets are copitolisea where they have an expected useful life of more than one year and where the original

cost of the item exceeds the capitalisation threshold Where opproprlate items are pooled The following
thresholds opply .

Information technology horowake,.and software - : - £1,000

Other tangible assets _ ) ' o . . .- £5,000

All expenditure on repairs and maintenance is charged to the SoCI during the financial year in which it is

‘incurred. BPDTS uses DWP IT hardware and pays a nominal cost via the IT Support Services Agreement.

19 Intangibleassets

Whether the Company acquwes intangible assets externally or generates them internally, they-are valued

-initially at cost, with subsequent valuation at fair value. Where an active market exists for the asset, it is

carried at a revalued amount based on market value at the end of the reporting period.-Where no active
morket exists the assets are revalued using approprlate indices to reflect depreciated replacement costas a
proxy for fair value.

Purchased software licences

Software licences and applications are capitalised ot cost as intangible ossets if they are in use for more

" than one year and cost more than £1,000. They are subsequently revolued using the most recent Office for

National Statistics publlshed indices as a proxy for fair value

1.10 ' Depreciation and amortlsatlon

Deprecmtuon is charged on property, plant and equipment, and arnortisation is chorged on mtanglble assets
using the straight line method to reflect the consumption of economic benefits.

Depreciation (Estimated useful asset lives are within these ranges)

* Information technology - . 3to7years.

Amortisation -

' Purchased software licencesr -~ .. Theshorter of the licence period, or 5 years

1. 11 Impairment of non- current assets

At each period end, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and mtonglble assets, to’
determine whether there is any impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the -
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell,.and value in use. Impairment losses are recognised as required by

- IAS36, which requires impairment losses to be recognisedin the SoCI to the extent that the |mpa|rment loss

exceeds the amount in the revaluat|on reserve for that particular asset.

1.12 Financial assets and liabilities

From 1 April 2018 we adopted IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) There has been no material impact on our
financial statements as a result of adoption. In line with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments), BPDTS recognises
financial assets and liabilities when it becomes party to the contracts that give rise to them. The BPDTS
pollcy isnot to trode in fnanual instruments. :

Loans and receivables

-Loans ond receivables are non-derivative financial ossets with fixed.or determinable payments that are not

quoted in an active market and which are not classified as available for sale. They are initially recognised

at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The fair value of
trade receivables is usually the original invoiced amount. The Company recognlses any changes in value in.
the SoCI : .
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Cash and cash equ:valents

Cosh and cash equivalents have an ongmol maturity of 3 months or less and represent cash balancesheld
~with the Government Banking Service. - '

'Fmanc:al liabilities , '

The Company determines its ﬂnoncucl liabilities as contractual obligations to deliver cash or other financial
assets to another entity. They are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently held at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to -
transfer cash flows is extinguished. Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and accruals.

1.13 Provisions

The Company.recognises provistons in accordance with IAS 37 (Provisions, COntingent Liabilities and
- Contingent Assets). They are valued using the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the -
obllgotlon and are discounted to present volue where the effect is material.

1.14 Pensnons

Employees who join the Compony are eligible to participate in a defined contribution workplace pen5|on
scheme, set up by BPDTS and operated by Aviva under a Master Trust. This enables BPDTS to fulfil its
. obligotions under automatic enrolment legislation which also covers the minimum funding requirements.

The obligation on BPDTS for each period is determined by the omount thot has to be contributed to the
scheme for that period. The Company matches personal contributions to personal plans on a 2:1 basis. The

' Compony will contnbute £2 for every £1 contrlbuted by the employeg, up to a maximum of 10% of gross
salary. -

A number of staff in BPDTS have contractual rights to the civil service pension arrangements (CSPA) under
the 2013 New Fair Deal policy on exactly the same Terms and Conditions as.other members of the scheme.

BPDTS has Admitted Bodies status into the scheme, which is managed by the Scheme Management
Executive within the Cabinet Office. The Civil Service Pension Arrangements (CSPA) is an unfunded

-multiemployer defined benefit scheme. The Company is unable to identify its underlying share of the .
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as
required by IAS 19, accounts for the scheme as if it were a.defined contribUtion schem'e

Current and pnor year contrlbutlons are set outin the remuneration report. The total cost ofemployer
pension contributions for the accounting period through.to company closure in 2021/22 is £940k, comprised
.of BPDTS workplace pension scheme - £800k and CSPA under the 2013 New Fair Deal - £140k requlred by

- IAS 19, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. ‘

il

Under the BPDTS vvorkpl‘oce scheme and the CSPA the Company occounts for the schemes as defined
contributions schemes. There are therefore no assumptions required to measure the ObllthIOﬂ or expense,
any liabilities cssoaoted Wlth elther pen5|on scheme do not rest with the Company.

115 Holiday entitlements

Where an empléyee has annual’leave accrued in the accounting period but not taken as at the date of

the accounts, the amount of this is reflected in the financial statements as short term employee benefits
_expected to be-paid in exchange for that serwce These manifest as a llellIty on the Statement of Financial

Position (SoFP) :

1.16 Contingent liabilities

The Compony discloses contlngent liabilities in accordance Wlth IAS 37 (Provnsmns Contingent Liabilities and

Contlngent Assets).

. Where the time value of money is material, contlngent llobllltles which are required to be disclosed under
IAS 37 are stated at discounted cmounts

For some statutory and non- statutory contnngent liabilities, the likelihood of transfer of economic benefit is
remote. However, the Company still discloses some of these for Parliamentary reporting and accountability,
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where this is needed under the requirements of Monoglng Publi¢ Money

1.17 Taxatlon

* BPDTS has registered for Value Added Tax (VAT), Pay As You Earn (PAYE) dnd Corpordtlon Tax (CT). CTis'

payable tothe extent that income exceeds trading losses. Tax is recognised in the SoCl. Current tax is the
expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the yedr using tax rates enocted or.
substantively enacted at the SoFP date.

1.18 VAT

. BPDTS provides IT serwces to the DWP which are toxoble at the standard rate of VAT at 20%. Expendlture

in these financial statements is shown exclusive of VAT as BPDTS recovers input VAT in occordonce with the

VAT Act 1994

119 Fundmg , 4 .
"BPDTS recelves |ts fundmg by way of a.loan from the DWP detailed at note 13. This is reflected in the SOFP

as a short-term liability. There is a fundlng focmty agreement in place between the DWP and BPDTS which
details the terms of the agreement. The funding is provided for workrng capital or for such purposes as

. agreed by the DWP.
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" Stoff costs during the year ending 31 March 2021 were as follows: .

1.20 Reserves

'BPDTS has two reserves, the general reserve and the revaluation reserve. The general reserves purpose is to

reflect any net income received by the business including any gains on.disposals of non-current assets that

~may arise. As at the date of these financial statements there have been no movements on this reserve since

the inception of the company. The purpose of the revaluation reserve is to reflect any movernent in the
corrylng value of intangible assets held by the business.

~Note 2; Staff & contractor costs

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

_ ] ' C £000 - . £000
Wages.and salaries o s01e 45,930
'Contrdcters‘ ) o . ‘ o 6,853 . 17922 |
Social security costs ' ' ' _ : . _ | 5553 . 4,975
Pension costs o L . - 3901 . 73,485
| Directors' salary o - o _' o | ’ o281 , . ‘ 290.
“Total staff costs S : ‘: o ‘ o " 67,602 62,602

Directors’ salary dlso includes a 5% overhead charge levied by DWP for Directors on secondment.. '

A 'Direct'ors’_ salary includes the costs for executive directors only.
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Note 3: IT Support and service costs
IT Support and service costs doring the yeor ending 31 Morch:2021‘ were os,follows:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

£000 £000
IT support and service costs A o ' 2,079 2,437
Total IT support and service costs : ' S 2,079 2,437

Note 4: Non IT.."S_UPPOrt ser vices

Non IT support_services during the year ending 31 March 2021 were as follows:

31 March2021

31 March 2020

A £000 " £000
Non IT support services . o S 3,839 3,963
Total Non IT support services . o o - S 3,839 3,963

The molorrty of the Non IT support services costs relote to Estates chorges levied by DWP.

Note 5: Other expendrture

" Other expendlture costs during. yeor endlng 31 March 2021 were as follows

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

| | 4 £000 - £000
Stoffreloted costs~~© - 1863 3,848

Professional services o ' o 258 " 226°
Generolofﬁceexpenses_ - o ‘- o , | . 88 170
Other costs 3 Y 17 :
- Total other'expenditure costs A - ‘ a . 9,071 4,‘244’

Staff related costs includes staff travel ond ossocroted subsrstence This has reduced during 20/21 as a

result of the' COVID-19 pondemlc

" Other costs mcludes an accrued lloblllty on BPDTS under the mtermedrorres legrslotlon (IR35). Internol
checks have highlighted inaccuracies in the assessment of some contractor’s employment status since
April 2017, when new leglslotrve requirements were introduced for public sector bodies. Compliance audit
work with HM Reventie and Customs was undertaken during 2021/22, in order to confirm the.final liability
that BPDTS would incur. This compllonce work is now completed and hos been-reported as a loss (frurtless ,

' poyment) in 2020/21.
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‘Note 6: Auditors Remu n‘er‘otiOrr

BPDTS Ltd is audited by the Comptroller and Auditor Generol No non- crudrt work. was undertaken for the
Company during the accounting period. The auditors fee for the oudrt of the Company’s 2020/21 financial
statements was £80,000 (2019/20: £80,000). :

N'ote 7: 'To_Xotion

year ended - - .yearended'

; oo . 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
' - © - £000 ' -£000
Profit on activities before tox o o | - 36 : 281
. Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses * o ‘ _ B 265 628
- Depreciation and amortisation expenditure S ' S o L
Less capital ollodeces L . ' - § (113) ’ B (138)
Ambunt"subjec“t to Corhoration Tax - = ’ i o 188 : 771
“Profiton ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of o . ‘36 ' A - 146 ‘
. corporation tax in UK of 19% (2020: 19%)
AdJustments in respect of prror perrods ‘ . ‘ - R ,157
Total tax churge _ : ‘ ' ‘ _ 36 T 303

_The total tdiotron charge recognised in year was £36k, being the current yeor corporotro'n tax charge ‘
'(2019/20: being a combination of the current year corporation-tax charge and the prior yeor value not
prevrously recognrsed) .

Note 8 Property, plant ond equrpment

yearended o year ended'

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000° -£000

Cost or Valuation
At1Aprl . - e . 756 756
Impairments , A " ’ 4 ‘ S - |
At 31 March o o 756 . - 756
' Depreciutien 4 | - I |
At 1 April - : S 756 756

Chorgedinyeor' S - . L - - : Co-

At,3.1M'urch . A ' S - 756 .. 756
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. Net bookalug at31March .~ ‘ - S

Asset financing '
Owned . R : SR ' " - -

. N_-e_tbooktvqlue;t31MpircH . o I o -
~ Note 9: Intangible assets

ye'ar ended
- 31 March 2021
. £000

year.ended

31 March 2020

£000 .

* Cost or Valuation

CAt1April - o , . , ; , - 1,761

1,761

Additions o

'Dispo‘sdls-‘ s ‘ i : o g L (1,710) -

Revaluations - . : I . ; . (51)

1,761

At31March o L e

Amortisation

AtApil e 1,761

1761

g _Chargedin‘y:eqrf R ' ' ' -

Disposals S T ‘ ' ' . (1.761) .

At,3._'1,March - ‘ o _ A _ o L

£ 1,761

Net book value at 31 Morch: : L o - o .

Note 10: Trade and other receivables -
' ' | o 31 March 2021
£000

. .31 March 2020

.£000

Trade receivables . o e ' o .38

1,198

Accruedincqrﬁe o o o ' 14,461

Other receivables s ST : . 26

16,569

34

.Prepoym,ént-sA - ' S B Lo e 424

. 384

" Balance at end of period o ' 14,949

- 8,185

]

" The trade receivables relate to funds due.from.Goverrhwmeht Digital Services. Accrued ihc:ome increased in
2020/21 as a result of additional accrued.expenditure to BPDTS with 100% cost.recovery from DWP.
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Note 11: Cash

31 March 2021 - 31 March 2020

. £000 . £000

Balance at beginning of pe'rlod : o o - 10,208 '7,924
Net-change in cash o » o » ' : - 1,7‘434 ‘ ' 2,284

| B‘ala'nc'e at end of pei'lod A | ' _. ‘ E L 11,951 , A 10,208

BPDTS does not hold any cash equuvolent bolonces All cash holdlngs are held with the Government Banking
Service.

Note 12 Tro:de'ond ot‘he_r poydbles .

" 31March2021 - 31 March 2020

" £000 © £000 .
. Amounts fqlling due within one year: ' ‘
VAT . ' 2355 2,411
Taxation ono Social Security _ - | o | 8342 T 1,354 |
Accruals and Deferred income . . . L ' ‘ 5,‘730 ' 4,194
Other payables o S e 383
—Bulance at end of period : ‘ , : T . ' ' . 16;900 - 8,A342‘

Taxation ond Social Securlty increased in 2020/21 as a result of accruing d liability of £6.9m payable
to HMRC. This is in relation to' Income Tax.and National Insurance due'on h|stor|c errors W|th the .
lmplementotlon of off—poyroll worklng {IR35) within BPDTS. '

| Notel 3: DWP loan

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

' » £000 . £000
Balance at beginnihg of period - ' - | 7. 10,000 - 10,000
'lncreoee‘in loan L : ' o . ' o - - -
Balance at end of peljiod z '_ » ‘ L Co 10,600‘ - 10,l).00

BPDTS is @ compony limited by guarantee, which is wholly owned ond funded by the DWP. BPDTS has the
option to repay-part or, the entire loan, in.order to minimise cash bolonces in occordonce with HM Treasury

“requirements.

As a result of these ﬂnoncuol stotements belng prepored onan other than going concern bosns the loan has,
been recl055|ﬂed as a current llObIllty
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Note *145qur? 'Deo_lfpr‘O\'/'iSio~n

31 March 2021 - 31 March 2020

o £000 £000
Bqlbnce at begtnning of period- | ' o L _ 553 )

- Amounts written back ' o o - . | -
Provided in the year » - : e AL
'P‘rovisibn'utilis'ed in'yelor. : ‘ - ' ' - - ©(553) .'

'Balanc.eatendofperiod ’ S : -

Fair Deal Provision

A number of staff in BPDTS have contractual rights to the Civil Service Pension Arrangements under the
2013 New Fair Deal policy. The Fair Deal guidonce states that members should be offered the optionto
transfer their accrued benefits from their previous scheme into the public service scherne that they hove
.Jomed for future service - ie, they are to be offered a bulk transfer option. :

For members who take up the bulk transfer option, their previous scheme’s liability will.be extinguished and

‘they will be given a service credit in the public service scheme, in respect of those transferred benefits. The
. bulk transfer.option is designed to give transferees either a ‘day for day’ service.credit in the public servrce
scheme, or an actuarial equrvolent where benefits in the two pension scheme differ.

To enoble this, the members’ previous scheme pays a sum ofmoney rnto the publrc service scheme in
_recognition of this trcrnsfer of benefits. This amaunt is known as the ‘bulk transfer amount’, or ‘BTV". In order
to provide the service credit offered to the'member, the public service scheme will require a sum of money.
This is known as the ‘fundrng requirement’. The BTV and fundrng requrrement are not usually the same.

If the BTV is lower than the funding requirement, then,.in order for the transfer to go oheod an additional
sum is required tq be paid into the public service scheme to make up the difference. This additional sum is -
known as the ‘shortfall’. Therefore, in order to meet the Fair Deal requirement for a bulk transfer optlon to be
offered, BPDTS will need to ensure that any shortfall will be pord »

In this specrﬁc case, the members’ previous scheme is the HPE EDS 94 Scheme (‘EDS 94 Scheme) and the
public service scheme is the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS). The eventual-shortfall payable
will- be the difference between the PCSPS funding requirement, at the date it is met in full, and the money
pord across by the EDS 94 Scheme in respect of the tronsfer of benefts :

The calculated shortfall was produced by Government Actuary’s Deportment on beholf of BPDTS, bosed on

the age, salorles and length of service of these stoff

, Durrng October 2018 Forr Deal exercises relotlng to tronches 1 ond 2 of transferred in staff were concluded.

This resulted in the actual transfer payment from the previous employer to the Civil Service pension
-schemes (i.e. the bulk transfer amount) for those individuals of £7.269m. At the beginning of the 2019/20 . .
~ financial year, the remaining Fair Deal éxercises related to tranches 3 and 4 and these were concluded

during September 2019. This resulted in the actual transfer payment from'the previous employer to the Civil: .

Service pension schemes of £553k. The residual balance in March 2020 was nil and this concludes all forr
deal activity relotlng to all elrglble staff, there are no outstanding fair deal octrvrtles at yeorend
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Note 15: Going concern basis |

Due to the outcome of the Tailored Review and resultant creotion‘of'o single digital function within DWP,
BPDTS will cease trodrng as a Limited Company on 30th June 2021. It has been considered opproprlote to
odopt an other than going concern basis for the preporotlon of these ﬂnoncml stotements

All assets and l|ob|l|t|es will transfer into DWP on 1st July 2021 In occordonce with the. FReM DWP will
account for the transfer of assets and liabilities using the absorption method. Under obsorptlon occountlng,
balances are transferred at the carrying value on the date of transfer. :

" We hove therefore accounted for our assets and liabjlities as at 31 March 2021 as follows. .

Property, plant and equipment nil (no change) .

’

Trade and other receivables =~ _‘ : S ‘ ' £14,949m (no change) -
Cash and cash equivalents o : - o A _ £11,951m (no change)

Trade ond other payables - ' < ' S £16,900m (no chonge)

- o £10m (no change, 2019/20: reclassified from a non- current llOblllty :
DWP Loan ' _toa current liability as a result of the odoptlon of an other than going
: - = : concern basis)

nit and no additional liabilities identified os @ result of the A
announcement that BPDTS Ltd will cease trading on 30: June 2021 .

nil and no odd|t|onol liabilities identified as @ result of the

Contingent IIOb'“t'-es ahnouncement that BPDTS Ltd will cease trading on 30 June 2021

Note 16: FlnonCIol lnstruments

"~ The Compony S cosh requwements ‘are lorgely met as a result of the Moster Services Agreement requmng

BPDTS to recover all costs through charges to its customer the DWP. The BPDTS cash requirements are
supplemented by a funding facility provided by the DWP. BPDTS has very limited powers to borrow or invest

“funds. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by ordinary operational octlvmes The corrymg amount .

ofﬂnoncrol ossets represents the maximurn cred|t risk exposure,

" Accordingly, financial instruments ploy a more l|m|ted role in-creating and managing risk than would apply-

to a non-public sector body As a result, the Compony is exposed to minimal credit, liquidity, morket or
interest rate nsk :

"Notei 17: Contingent liabilities |

‘Compensation payments may become due because of claims oooinst us by staff. Claims relate to

employment tribunals. There is significant uncertainty around the estimated liability’and the timing of .
payments. This uncertainty can fluctuate based on factors such as medical evidence received, witness
statements and whether claims proceed to trial or are settled early. Therefore, it is not practical to disclose
an estimate of the ﬁnoncrol effect or the timing of any outflow.
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Note 18: Reloted party tronsoctrons

The Compony s sole member is the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions. The DWP is regorded asa

" controlling related party. BPDTS operates on a full cost recovery basis, and accordingly recovers all of its
costs from the DWP and other government departments. This full cost recovery represented income to the
Company of £82.2m during the period (2019/20: £73.5m). The Company incurred expendrture of £3.8m

- (2019/20: £3.9m) for a range of support services it received from the DWP. These support services included

Finance, Estates, HR and Commercial.

~ Other than their salaries and pensions, no Board member, key manager or other related party has
undertaken any material transaction with'the DWP during the year. |

Details of remuneration for key management personnel can be found in the remuneration and staff report.

Note 19: ~Ever1ts ofterthe.reporti'ng period

In May 2021, HMRC concluded their review of off-payroll working (IR35) implementation in BPDTS Ltd.
The result was agreement on historic errors and acceptance by BPDTS Ltd of a liability for Income Tax and
National Insurancé plus interest for.the financial-years 2017/18 to 2019/20. The liability agreed for the
financial years 201 7/18 to 2019/20 omounted to £6.9m ond was paid to HMRC during Moy 2021.

All BPDTS employees were TUPE’d into DWP on 1st July 2021, creating the srngle drgrtol function as
recommended by the Tailored Review. On this date the company ceased providing a service to DWP
and membership of the Board, to take the company to formal closure and strike off wrll be made up of -
- executive members

i Note 20: Losses ond specrol poyments

-
' Monoglng Public Money requires a statement showrng losses and specrol payments by value and by typeto
be shown where they exceed £300k in totat and those that, individually, exceed £300k. Losses may relate
“to cash and store losses, bookkeeprng losses; losses arising from a failure to make adequate charge for the
use of public property or services, fruitless payments, claims abandoned and frauds. Special poyments moy

relate to extra-contractual, extro statutory and ex-gratia payments and compensotlons

Dunng 2020/21, the Company incurred one fruitless payment in excess of the reportlng threshold (2019/20
No losses or special payments in excess of the reporting threshold in year).

- IR35 legrslotlon from 6 April 2017 requrred public sector bodies, where they engage off—poyroll workers, to

", ensure they correctly assess their ‘employment status’ i.e. correct tax treatment. To do this, BPDTS utilised - -

HMRC’s CEST(Check Employment Status Tool). In May 2021 BPDTS received a Letter of Offer from HMRC that
formally concluded their review of IR35 implementation in BPDTS. The result-was agreement on historic ‘
. errors and acceptance by BPDTS of a'liability for tax/NI plus interest for the financial years 2017-18, 2018-19

*. and 2019-20. The total amounted to £6.9m, which is classed as a fruitless payment in line with Managing

_Public Money. For more information please see note 19 events after the reporting period.-

Note 21: Commrtments

The company has commrtments in substonce to the Department for Work and Pensions for the provision of
estates and IT equipment. These forward commitments for the-accounting period to company closure, at

~ 31 July 2021 are anticipated to be in the order of £900k (2020/21: £3. 6m) for estates and £500k (2020/21:
£1.8m) for IT equrpment . o
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